
TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

AGENDA PACKET

For the Regular Meeting of Wednesday

May 6, 2015

7:00 P.M. Regular Meeting

District Office

1800 Willow Lake Road

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for May 6, 2015 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

 
 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday May 6, 2015 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the agenda.  The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak must come up and speak from the podium.  
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter.  Any clarifying questions from the Board 
must go through the Chair. 
 

C. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
  1  Sheriff’s Office Report  
 2. CHP Report 

3. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report  
4. Supervisor Mary Piepho, District III Report 

 
D. COMMITTEE/LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Trans-Plan Report 
2.   County Planning Commission Report 
3. Code Enforcement Report 
4. Special Districts Report**  
**These meetings are held Quarterly 

 
E. PRESENTATIONS 

1. Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District 
 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approval of DRAFT minutes of regular meeting dated April 14, 2015 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices  
3. Approve and Adopt Resolution Number 2015-06, Direction to HERWIT Engineering to prepare 2015-

2016 Annual Assessment Report for the Ravenswood Improvement District, Discovery Bay Landscape 
& Lighting Zone #9  
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 
 

 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for May 6, 2015 - Pg.2 

 

G. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Review of the FY 2013-14 “DRAFT” Audited Financial Statements for the Town of Discovery Bay 
2. Approve and Adopt Resolution No. 2015-07 to Revise Park Rules and Regulations Forms and Fees for 

the Town of Discovery Bay CSD owned and maintained Parks and Facilities 
3. Agency Comment Request – Variance Permit Application VP15-1014 – Front Yard Variance Request – 

4525 Discovery Point, Discovery Bay 
 
H.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY (NO ACTION NECESSARY) 

1. DRAFT CCR 
 

I. PRESIDENT REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 
J. MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 
  
K. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 

1. Schedule Budget Workshop – May 27, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Drought Update 

 
L. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Discussion on Sub-Committee Status 
 

M. SUB-COMMITTEE UPDATES – Discussion and Possible Action 
1. Finance 
2. Communications 
3. Parks and Recreation 
4. Water and Wastewater 
5. Waterways 

 
N. CORRESPONDENCE – Discussion and Possible Action  

 
O. PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS RECEIVED   
 
P. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
  
Q.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next regular meeting dated May 20, 2015 starting at 7:00 p.m. on 1800 Willow Lake Rd – 
Located behind the Delta Community Presbyterian Church.  

 
 
 
 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925)634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least twenty-four hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item C

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item D

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item E-1

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 14, 2015 - Pg.1 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Tuesday April 14, 2015 
SPECIAL MEETING 6:00 P.M. 
1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
SPECIAL MEETING 6:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Call business meeting to order – 6:09 p.m. by Vice-President Pease 
Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Director Simon 
Roll Call – All present with the exception of President Steele 
President Steele – Arrived at 6:23 p.m. 

 
B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
 None 
 
C. PRESENTATIONS 

None 
 

D. PRESIDENT REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 None 
 
E. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approval of DRAFT minutes of special meeting for April 1, 2015 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices  
3. Purchase Emergency Stand-By Generator for Well No. 7 
Motion by: Director Simon to approve the Consent Calendar 
Second by: Director Leete 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4 – Vice-President Pease, Director Graves, Director Leete, Director Simon; 
NOES: 0; ABSENT: 1 – President Steele 
 

F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Review Urban Water Management Plan 
Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting Engineers – Provided the details of the Urban Water Management 
Plan.  There was discussion between the General Manager, Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting 
Engineers, Legal Counsel, and the Board. 
2. Groundwater Sustainability Plan Proposal for Services 
Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting Engineers – Provided the details of the Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan Proposal for Services.  There was discussion between the General Manager, Luhdorff and Scalmanini 
Consulting Engineers, Legal Counsel, and the Board. 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 
 

 

Agenda Item F-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 14, 2015 - Pg.2 

 
 

Motion by: Vice-President Pease to approve expenditure with Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting 
Engineers in the amount of $23,658.40 to conduct technical support for planning and compliance with the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (Act)and authorize the General Manager to execute all 
contract documents 
Second by: Director Leete 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 

 
G. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY (NO ACTION NECESSARY) 

1. Drought – Governor’s Executive Order requiring 25% Water Reduction 
General Manager Howard – Provided the details of item G-1.   
 

H. VEOLIA REPORT 
1. Veolia Report – Month of March 2015 
Project Manager Berney Sadler – Provided the details of the March 2015 Monthly Operations Report.  
There was discussion between the Project Manager, the General Manager, and the Board. 

 
I. MANAGER’S REPORTS – Discussion and Possible Action 
 
J. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 

General Manager Howard – Provided the details of the new 2015 Ford Truck and that Earth Day is on 
April 25, 2015. 

 
K. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 None 
 
L. COMMITTEE UPDATES – Discussion and Possible Action 
 Vice-President Pease – Stated that there was a Landscape Committee.  
 General Manager Howard – Stated that the Water and Wastewater meeting is next week. 
 
M. CORRESPONDENCE – Discussion and Possible Action  

1. R – Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for 02-12-15 
2. R – State Route 4 Bypass meeting minutes for 02-12-15 
3. R – East Contra Costa Fire Protection District meeting minutes for 03-02-15 
4. R – Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for 03-12-15 

 
N.  PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS RECEIVED  
 None 
 
O.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

1. Transparencies on the Board Sub Committees according the Brown Act (5 subcommittees that are 
not agenized) 
 

P. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. to the next Regular meeting on May 6, 2015 starting at 7:00 p.m. on 
1800 Willow Lake Road.  
 
 
 

 
//cmc – 04-20-15 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/content/agenda-and-minutes/ 

 

Agenda Item F-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/content/agenda-and-minutes/


 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

May 06, 2015 

 
Prepared By:   Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Sr. Accounts Clerk 
Submitted By:    Rick Howard, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 318,621.76 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2014/2015 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 8 2014/2015 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 9 2014/2015 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F-2 

Cinderella
Stamp



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Administration

Commercial Tree Care 21368 Landscape Reimb (Z61) 04/03/15 $1,820.00

Commercial Tree Care 21381 Newport Dr. Tree Care (Z61) 04/06/15 $1,240.00

Odyssey Landscape Co, Inc. 36040209.1 Bark Installation (Z61) 02/28/15 $6,650.00

Odyssey Landscape Co, Inc. 36040276.1 Bark Installation (Z61) 03/31/15 $9,500.00

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Landscape Reimb (Z35,Z57,Z61) 03/25/15 $720.33

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1561993-00 Misc. Items (Z61) 04/09/15 $120.39

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1566298-00 Misc. Items (Z35,Z57,Z51) 04/20/15 $176.66

Administration Sub-Total $20,227.38

Water

Aflac 848172 Supplemental Insurance April 2015 04/25/15 $202.37

Alhambra 13710019 041715 Water Service 04/17/15 $14.16

All American Equipment Sales 1171 Service Trackloader 04/03/15 $322.03

All Bay Custom Cabinets & Millwork 2105 Board Room Relocation 03/24/15 $428.08

American Retrofit Systems 1079 Building Maintenance 04/16/15 $130.00

American Retrofit Systems 1083 Building Maintenance 04/13/15 $50.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33091 Connectivity Issues 02/12/15 $300.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33106 Laptop Set Up 04/16/15 $100.80

Big Dog Computer BDC33108 Anti-Virus Upgrade 04/16/15 $40.98

Big Dog Computer BDC33109 Email Forwarding 04/16/15 $15.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33110 Board Room Relocation 04/22/15 $455.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33114 Software Installation 04/23/15 $90.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33116 Software Maintenance 04/24/15 $34.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33117 Security Improvements 04/24/15 $106.74

Big Dog Computer BDC33120 Email Maintenance 04/25/15 $45.50

Big Dog Computer BDC33113 Board Room Relocation 04/23/15 $172.00

Bill Brandt Ford 132153 Brake Repair 04/08/15 $535.83

Bill Pease Apr-15 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $46.00

Caselle, Inc. 64507 Support and Maintenance Mar 2015 04/01/15 $364.00

Cash April 2015 Petty Cash Reimb. 04/17/15 $58.40

Charlotte McLaughlin 5061 Almanor Closed Account, Refund Overpayment 04/09/15 $8.72

Chris Steele April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $92.00

Cintas 185505370 Uniforms 03/25/15 $8.11

Cintas 185506186 Uniforms 04/01/15 $7.55

Conco West Inc. 813 Strainer Installation 04/15/15 $17,818.92

County of Contra Costa Public Works Dept 918364 Encroachment Permits 04/02/15 $835.54

County of Contra Costa Public Works Dept 918374 Encroachment Permits 04/02/15 $250.20

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 9502 Data Processing Charges Mar 2015 04/13/15 $17.60

Denalect Alarm Company R17867 Alarm Charge 04/01/15 $6.00

Digital Deployment, Inc. 92155 Website Development 12/30/14 $2,688.00

Discovery Locks & More, Inc. 12533 Padlocks Keyed 04/10/15 $196.23

Discovery Pest Control 145667 Pest Control 04/17/15 $27.20

Du-All Safety 16818 Safety Support and Training for 2014-2015 03/31/15 $1,160.00

Freedom Mailing Service, Inc 26525 Water Bills Mar 2015 04/13/15 $1,066.32

Gann Properties 5411 Gold Creek Closed Account, Refund Overpayment 04/02/15 $48.63

Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. 3173 Laserfiche Templates and Database Cleanup 04/04/15 $554.04

Golden State Flow Measurement, Inc I-043743 Badger End Points 04/09/15 $5,440.58

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2311 Change Out Galvanized Couplings 04/06/15 $4,765.24

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2313 Leak on Marina Circle 04/06/15 $1,449.68

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2314 Paved Two Spots on Discovery Bay Blvd 04/06/15 $6,281.15

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2315 Crack Sealer Clipper Dr and Discovery Bay Blvd 04/06/15 $1,673.95

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2316 Install New Base S Lake Front Loop 04/06/15 $367.90

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2318 Concrete on Starfish Place 04/07/15 $1,785.70

Lisa Polido 2604 Crescent Closed Account, Refund Overpayment 04/23/15 $26.75

Mark Simon April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $92.00

Office Depot 762995953001 Office Supplies 03/30/15 $19.80

Office Depot 762995983001 Office Supplies 03/28/15 $51.21

Office Depot 764215236001 Office Supplies 04/07/15 $60.62

Office Depot 764215442001 Office Supplies 04/07/15 $17.00

Office Depot 764648683001 Board Room Relocation 04/10/15 $65.93

Pacific Gas & Electric 2943721807-5/041315 Electric and Gas Bill 03/12/15-04/09/15 04/13/15 $17,077.86

Paul E. Vaz Trucking, Inc. 35022 Material 03/30/15 $467.96

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On May 06, 2015 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD

For Fiscal Year’s 7/14 - 6/15

Agenda Item F-2



Paul E. Vaz Trucking, Inc. 35023 Freight 03/30/15 $596.72

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company #JR52 457(B) 04/30/1 457(b) 04/01/15-04/30/15 04/30/15 $916.08

Ricoh USA, Inc 5035615602 Photocopier 04/19/15 $61.38

Robert Leete April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $138.00

SDRMA 16880 Ancillary Benefits May 2015 04/24/15 $507.30

Shred-It USA-Concord 9405357089 Shredding Service 04/02/15 $22.79

Some Gave All April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $301.53

SWRCB LW-1000037 Large Water System Fees 07/01/14-12/31/14 04/14/15 $2,981.12

TASC 450775312003/0515 Flexible Spending May 2015 04/27/15 $241.66

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Health Insurance 03/25/15 $3,962.04

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Travel & Meetings 03/25/15 $70.30

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Telephone General 03/25/15 $265.05

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Telecom Networking 03/25/15 $96.00

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Vehicle & Equipment Fuel 03/25/15 $856.43

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Automotive Supplies & Repairs 03/25/15 $149.69

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 General Repair 03/25/15 $152.83

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Special Equipment 03/25/15 $12.96

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Info System Maintenance 03/25/15 $92.80

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Small Tools 03/25/15 $138.44

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Computer Software 03/25/15 $20.00

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Office Supplies 03/25/15 $305.66

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Building Maintenance 03/25/15 $341.33

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Special Expense 03/25/15 $127.57

United States Postal Services 2 Postage 04/14/15 $384.00

Univar SJ675872 Chemicals Delivered 03/31/15 03/31/15 $273.84

Univar SJ675874 Chemicals Delivered 03/31/15 03/31/15 $108.73

Univar SJ677666 Chemicals Delivered 04/10/15 04/10/15 $265.78

Univar SJ677667 Chemicals Delivered 04/10/15 04/10/15 $76.51

Upper Case Printing, Ink. 9336 Water Schedule Notice 04/13/15 $63.33

Veolia Water North America 47841 Monthly O&M May 2015 05/01/15 $40,403.73

Verizon Wireless 9743007077 Phone Bill March 2015 03/26/15 $142.50

Water Sub-Total $122,015.38

Wastewater

Aflac 848172 Supplemental Insurance April 2015 04/25/15 $303.55

Alhambra 13710019 041715 Water Service 04/17/15 $21.24

All American Equipment Sales 1171 Service Trackloader 04/03/15 $483.05

All Bay Custom Cabinets & Millwork 2105 Board Room Relocation 03/24/15 $642.11

American Retrofit Systems 1077 Lighting Repair 04/01/15 $200.00

American Retrofit Systems 1079 Building Maintenance 04/16/15 $195.00

American Retrofit Systems 1083 Building Maintenance 04/13/15 $75.00

Bay Area Air Quality Management District 3NV58 Annual Permit Renewal 06/01/15-06/01/17 04/07/15 $570.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33096 Email Set Up 02/03/15 $50.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33106 Laptop Set Up 04/16/15 $151.20

Big Dog Computer BDC33108 Anti-Virus Upgrade 04/16/15 $61.46

Big Dog Computer BDC33109 Email Forwarding 04/16/15 $22.50

Big Dog Computer BDC33110 Board Room Relocation 04/22/15 $682.50

Big Dog Computer BDC33114 Software Installation 04/23/15 $135.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33116 Software Maintenance 04/24/15 $51.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33117 Security Improvements 04/24/15 $160.10

Big Dog Computer BDC33120 Email Maintenance 04/25/15 $68.25

Big Dog Computer BDC33113 Board Room Relocation 04/23/15 $258.00

Bill Pease April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $69.00

Cascade Integration And Development 924 Scada Project 04/06/15 $22,875.00

Caselle, Inc. 64507 Support and Maintenance Mar 2015 04/01/15 $546.00

Cash Apr-15 Petty Cash Reimb. 04/17/15 $88.48

Chris Steele April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $138.00

Cintas 185505370 Uniforms 03/25/15 $12.16

Cintas 185506186 Uniforms 04/01/15 $11.33

Cintas 185506985 Uniforms 04/08/15 $21.61

Cintas 185507796 Uniforms 04/15/15 $21.61

Cintas 185508605 Uniforms 04/22/15 $33.61

Comcast 8155400350232938/415 Internet WWTP#2 04/03/15 $118.75

Comcast 8155400350232946/415 Internet WWTP#1 04/03/15 $93.70

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 9502 Data Processing Charges Mar 2015 04/13/15 $26.40

Denalect Alarm Company R17867 Alarm Charge 04/01/15 $9.00

Digital Deployment, Inc. 92155 Website Development 12/30/14 $4,032.00

Discovery Locks & More, Inc. 12533 Padlocks Keyed 04/10/15 $294.34

Discovery Pest Control 145667 Pest Control 04/17/15 $40.80

Du-All Safety 16818 Safety Support and Training for 2014-2015 03/31/15 $1,740.00

Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. 3173 Laserfiche Templates and Database Cleanup 04/04/15 $831.06

Herwit Engineering 15-3 Professional Services Mar 2015 04/01/15 $3,309.90

Agenda Item F-2



Herwit Engineering DB-MP-5,6,7,12-11 Effluent Filters & PS Modifications 04/01/15 $56,742.50

Mark Simon 42095 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $138.00

Neopost (Postage Account) 7900044908384658/415 Postage 04/06/15 $4.66

Office Depot 762995953001 Office Supplies 03/30/15 $29.70

Office Depot 762995983001 Office Supplies 03/28/15 $76.81

Office Depot 764215236001 Office Supplies 04/07/15 $90.93

Office Depot 764215442001 Office Supplies 04/07/15 $25.51

Office Depot 764648683001 Board Room Relocation 04/10/15 $98.90

Office Depot 764648711001 Office Supplies 04/08/15 $3.73

Pacific Gas & Electric 1181942262-4/040915 Electric and Gas Bill 03/11/15-04/08/15 04/09/15 $5,378.83

Pacific Gas & Electric 7312115758-7/041315 Electric and Gas Bill 03/13/15-04/12/15 04/13/15 $18,523.17

ReliaStar Life Insurance Company #JR52 457(B) 04/30/1 457(b) 04/01/15-04/30/15 04/30/15 $1,374.12

Ricoh USA, Inc 5035615602 Photocopier 04/19/15 $92.08

Robert Leete April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $207.00

SDRMA 16880 Ancillary Benefits May 2015 04/24/15 $760.94

Shred-It USA-Concord 9405357089 Shredding Service 04/02/15 $34.19

Solenis LLC 130958477 Praestol 04/15/15 $3,772.21

Some Gave All April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/27/15 $452.30

Stantec Consulting Services Inc 898325 Master Plan Nitrite And Nitrate Update 04/14/15 $1,845.00

TASC 450775312003/0515 Flexible Spending May 2015 04/27/15 $362.48

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Health Insurance 03/25/15 $5,943.06

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Info System Maintenance 03/25/15 $139.20

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Travel & Meetings 03/25/15 $105.44

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Telephone General 03/25/15 $501.27

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Telecom Networking 03/25/15 $144.00

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Vehicle & Equipment Fuel 03/25/15 $244.64

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Automotive Supplies & Repairs 03/25/15 $224.53

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Special Equipment 03/25/15 $19.44

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Small Tools 03/25/15 $251.88

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Computer Software 03/25/15 $29.99

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Office Supplies 03/25/15 $458.49

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Building Maintenance 03/25/15 $524.95

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Special Expense 03/25/15 $60.04

United States Postal Services 2 Postage 04/14/15 $576.00

Veolia Water North America 46442 Effluent Filtration 03/13/15 $175.59

Veolia Water North America 47841 Monthly O&M May 2015 05/01/15 $60,605.60

Verizon Wireless 9743007077 Phone Bill March 2015 03/26/15 $213.75

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1556719-00 Misc. Items 03/27/15 $23.60

Community Center Wastewater Sub-Total $198,697.24

Brentwood Embroidery & Sewing 4242 Earth Day Promotions 04/20/15 $720.82

Community Center Sub-Total $720.82

Grand Total $341,660.82

Agenda Item F-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount
Alhambra 13710019 041715 Community Center-Water Service 04/17/15 $54.35

American Retrofit Systems 1074 Mount LED Truck Light 03/27/15 $510.00

American Retrofit Systems 1080 Trailer Plug Repair 04/16/15 $100.00

American Retrofit Systems 1081 Install Lights on Ford F150 04/10/15 $600.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33101 Community Center-Anti-Virus Upgrade 02/22/15 $162.50

Big Dog Computer BDC33103 Community Center-Computer Repair 02/25/15 $130.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33111 Community Center-Printer Repair 04/22/15 $95.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33121 Community Center-Camera Server Maintenance 04/25/15 $140.83

Brentwood Press & Publishing 171005 Community Center-Earth Day Advertising 04/03/15 $100.00

Brentwood Press & Publishing 171221 Community Center-Earth Day Advertising 04/10/15 $100.00

Cintas 185505370 Uniforms 03/25/15 $40.53

Cintas 185505370 Community Center-Mats 03/25/15 $25.75

Cintas 185506186 Uniforms 04/01/15 $37.77

Cintas 185506186 Community Center-Mats 04/01/15 $20.75

Cintas 185506985 Uniforms 04/08/15 $31.07

Cintas 185506985 Community Center-Mats 04/08/15 $35.83

Cintas 185507796 Uniforms 04/15/15 $31.07

Cintas 185507796 Community Center-Mats 04/15/15 $39.72

Cintas 185508605 Uniforms 04/22/15 $37.97

Cintas 185508605 Community Center-Mats 04/22/15 $44.72

Dan Meewis April 2015 Community Center-Expense Report 04/09/15 $161.52

Delta Debris Box Service 1045623 Community Center-40 Yd Bin 03/31/15 $526.00

Delta Fence Company, Inc. 25703 Community Center-Dog Park Chain Link Fence 04/09/15 $2,610.40

Delta Fence Company, Inc. 25728 Community Center-Dog Park Chain Link Fence 04/24/15 $1,164.00

Discovery Locks & More, Inc. 12491 Community Center-Door Repair 03/28/15 $125.00

Future Stars 2000's, Inc. 5 Community Center-Program Fees 04/19/15 $324.00

Lincoln Equipment, Inc. SI261275 Community Center-Pool Chemicals 04/03/15 $588.54

Lincoln Equipment, Inc. SI261653 Community Center-Pool Supplies 04/09/15 $163.75

Maureen Vergara 1 Community Center-Swim Team Refund 04/23/15 $335.00

Muir Diablo Occupational Medicine 303327 Community Center-Employment Screening 04/09/15 $25.00

National Aquatic Services, Inc. 2014-1001 Community Center-Equipment Repair 04/10/15 $262.50

Office Depot 765894888001 Community Center-Office Supplies 04/16/15 $193.07

Office Depot 765895127001 Community Center-Office Supplies 04/16/15 $43.39

Pacific Gas & Electric 0869258994-1/040915 Electric and Gas Bill 03/12/15-04/09/15 04/09/15 $366.61

Pacific Gas & Electric 5702839598-6/041015 Community Center-Electric and Gas Bill 03/12/15-04/09/15 04/10/15 $1,479.47

Pacific Gas & Electric 59397344215-5/0415 Electric and Gas Bill 03/19/15-04/17/15 04/17/15 $6,760.82

SDRMA 50677 Community Center-Swim Team 04/06/15 $50.00

Shanae Armstrong April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/09/15 $43.04

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-002-6.02 Community Center-Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $476.85

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-002-7.02 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $27.62

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.01 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $630.16

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.02 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $178.84

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.03 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $321.91

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.04 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $77.06

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.05 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $26.17

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.06 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $103.23

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.07 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $9.30

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.08 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $9.30

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.09 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $9.30

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-2.10 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $36.93

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-4.01 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $2.90

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-4.02 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $89.27

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-4.03 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $368.44

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-4.04 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $2.90

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-4.05 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $62.52

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-012-0.01 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $5.81

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 374 Payroll Reimbursement Feb 2015 04/22/15 $18,743.05

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 376 Payroll Reimbursement Mar 2015 04/22/15 $24,535.06

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Travel & Meetings 03/25/15 $65.02

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Telephone Cellular 03/25/15 -$64.34

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Vehicle & Equipment Fuel 03/25/15 $277.80

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Automotive Supplies & Repairs 03/25/15 $171.65

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Equipment Maintenance 03/25/15 $705.40

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Small Tools 03/25/15 $33.69

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Office Supplies 03/25/15 -$17.43

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On May 06, 2015 

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #8

For Fiscal Year’s 7/14 - 6/15

Agenda Item F-2



U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Landscape Maintenance 03/25/15 $644.09

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Building Maintenance 03/25/15 $92.13

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Community Center-Travel & Meetings 03/25/15 $273.70

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Community Center-Events 03/25/15 $309.00

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Community Center-Equipment Maintenance 03/25/15 $135.67

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Community Center-Computer Software 03/25/15 $360.95

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Community Center-Personal Protective Equipment 03/25/15 $264.68

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Community Center-Program Fees 03/25/15 $160.50

Verizon Wireless 9743007077 Phone Bill March 2015 03/26/15 $121.90

Verizon Wireless 9743007077 Community Center-Phone Bill March 2015 03/26/15 $121.90

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1554624-00 Landscape Maintenance 03/23/15 $178.24

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1554849-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 03/23/15 $74.52

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1555985-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 03/25/15 $95.61

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1558636-00 Community Center-Landscape Maintenance 04/01/15 $7.84

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1559326-00 Community Center-Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 04/02/15 $200.63

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1566298-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 04/20/15 $58.89

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1567410-00 Community Center-Dog Park 04/22/15 $126.50

Total $67,675.13

Agenda Item F-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Cintas 185505370 Uniforms 03/25/15 $40.53

Cintas 185506186 Uniforms 04/01/15 $37.78

Cintas 185506985 Uniforms 04/08/15 $31.67

Cintas 185507796 Uniforms 04/15/15 $31.67

Cintas 185508605 Uniforms 04/22/15 $38.57

Hydropoint Data Systems, Inc. 1028990/HR112109 WeatherTrak Ravenswood 04/15/15 $225.00

Odyssey Landscape Co, Inc. 36039892.2 Replanting 09/30/14 $625.00

Pacific Gas & Electric 0403377952-3/040915 Electric and Gas Bill 03/11/15-04/05/15 04/09/15 $66.68

Shanae Armstrong April 2015 Expense Report April 2015 04/09/15 $43.04

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-3.01 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $190.47

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-3.02 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $489.12

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 9-900-000-004-3.03 Water Bill 03/01/15-03/31/15 03/31/15 $204.14

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 375 Payroll Reimbursement Feb 2015 04/22/15 $3,976.86

Town of Discovery Bay, CSD 377 Payroll Reimbursement Mar 2015 04/22/15 $2,720.20

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Telephone General 03/25/15 $10.32

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Vehicle & Equipment Fuel 03/25/15 $364.99

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Equipment Maintenance 03/25/15 $503.22

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Office Supplies 03/25/15 $22.75

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 4246044555703473/315 Landscape Maintenance 03/25/15 $145.26

Verizon Wireless 9743007077 Phone Bill March 2015 03/26/15 $121.90

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1554849-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 03/23/15 $74.52

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1555985-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 03/25/15 $95.61

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1556719-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 03/27/15 $176.95

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1566298-00 Misc. Irrigation Repair Items 04/20/15 $58.89

Total $10,295.14

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices   (RFA)

For The Meeting On May 06, 2015

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #9 (Ravenswood)

For Fiscal Year’s 7/14 - 6/15

Agenda Item F-2



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

May 6, 2015 

 
Prepared By:    Rick Howard, General Manager 
Submitted By:  Rick Howard, General Manager 

 
Agenda Title 
 
Direction to HERWIT Engineering to prepare 2015-2016 Annual Assessment Report for the Ravenswood Improvement 
District, Discovery Bay Landscape & Lighting Zone #9 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board Adopt Resolution No. 2015-06 authorizing the Annual Assessment of the Ravenswood Improvement 
District Landscape and Lighting Zone #9 and Direct Herwit Engineering to prepare the Engineer’s Assessment Report 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
As part of the annual assessment process the Ravenswood Improvement District – Discovery Bay Landscape and 
Lighting Zone #9 (DB L&L #9), the Board must approve and direct an Engineer’s Assessment Report be prepared.  This 
approval must be by Resolution. 
 
Since its inception, the DB L&L #9 Engineer’s assessment reports have been drafted and prepared by HERWIT 
Engineering (HERWIT).  Due to their in-depth knowledge of the zone and access to historical data, Staff recommends 
approving Resolution 2015-06, which directs HERWIT to prepare the 2015-2016 Annual Assessment Report for DB L&L 
#9.  
 
HERWIT Engineering would perform this work under current contract with the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District, for an amount not to exceed $1,440.00.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested $1,440.00 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  YES 

 Prog/Fund #    9/2310  Category:  Operating Expenses  
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
None 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Resolution 2015-06 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: F-3 

Cinderella
Stamp



 

 

 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
REGARDING THE ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 

OF THE RAVENSWOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ZONE #9 

 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD, pursuant to a will-serve letter with the 

developer of that subdivision known as Ravenswood, has formed a landscaping, park, lighting and open space 
district, known as Ravenswood Improvement District – DB L&L Zone #9, for the purpose of providing for the 
operation and maintenance of landscaping, parks, street lights and open space installed in said subdivision by 
developer; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors now desires to levy the annual assessment for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 for 
such district. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District, in an effort to deter crime, 
provide traffic safety, aid law enforcement, and provide a better neighborhood environment has formed an 
assessment district pursuant to California Streets & Highway Code, Division 15, Part 2, sections 22500 and 
following, pursuant to Resolution 2005-03. 

2. The improvements, the operation and maintenance of which are intended to be funded by the assessments 
levied by the proposed assessment district, include all expenses associated with the maintenance and operation 
of non-privately owned landscaping, parks, street lights, and open space in the subdivision 8710 known as 
Ravenswood. 

3. The assessment district consists of that property generally described as Subdivision 8710-Ravenswood being 
a subdivision of a portion of the Northwest quarter of Section 26, Township 1 North, Range 3 East, Mount Diablo 
Meridian as recorded in Book 458 of Maps, Pages 1-15, Contra Costa County Records. 

4. HERWIT Engineering is hereby ordered to prepare a report for annual assessment for the assessment 
District in accordance with Article 4, of Chapter 1, of Part 2, of Division 15 (commencing with § 22565), of the 
California Streets and Highways Code, and to file it with the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District. 

5. The Board of Directors finds and declares that the formation of the assessment district, and the levy of 
assessments, is exempt from the requirement of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations section 15273(a), in that such formation and levy is not designed to 
increase services, or expand a system, but is for the purpose, with respect to systems already determined to be 
installed pursuant to the various documents approving the Ravenswood subdivision, of meeting operating 
expenses, purchasing supplies, equipment and materials, meeting financial reserve needs, and obtaining funds 
necessary for repair and replacement to maintain such services and systems. 

6. If, and when, the annual assessment is levied, the Secretary of the Board of Directors is authorized and 
directed to file a notice of exemption from CEQA. 

7. The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2015-06 

 

 

Agenda Item F-3



 

 

 

2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 6
th
 DAY OF May 2015. 

 
 
 
      _________________________ 
      Chris Steele 
      Board President 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District at this regular meeting, held on May 6, 2015, by the following vote of the Board: 

 
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Richard J. Howard 
Board Secretary 

 
 

Agenda Item F-3



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

May 6, 2015 
 

 
Prepared By: Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager 

 
Agenda Title 
 
Review of the FY 2013-14 “DRAFT” Audited Financial Statements for the Town of Discovery Bay 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Provide comment and feedback to the DRAFT Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2013-14. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Croce, Sanguinetti, and Vander Veen performed the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2014 Audit on behalf of the Town of 
Discovery Bay. 
 
The DRAFT Year-End Audit for Fiscal Year 2013-14 is presented for Board review, comment and feedback. 
 
Staff is seeking Board input into the Audit and once received, Croce, Sanguinetti, and Vander Veen will finalize the 
Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2013-14.  It is anticipated that the final approval will take place at the May 20, 2015 
Regular Meeting of the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 

1. DRAFT Financial Statements & Independent Auditors’ Report - Letter to the Board of Directors 
2. DRAFT Financial Statements & Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM: G-1 

http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0CCYQFjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcsvcpas.com%2F&ei=kdx7U4rtOsyhyASGj4GIBA&usg=AFQjCNE0QYBlCFoGiD_rAsSQ8wdZA6A4Ww&bvm=bv.67229260,d.aWw
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0CCYQFjAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcsvcpas.com%2F&ei=kdx7U4rtOsyhyASGj4GIBA&usg=AFQjCNE0QYBlCFoGiD_rAsSQ8wdZA6A4Ww&bvm=bv.67229260,d.aWw
Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



 
 

 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

May 6, 2015 

 

Prepared By:   Dan Meewis, Recreation Programs Coordinator  
Submitted By:  Rick Howard, General Manager   
 
Agenda Title 
 

Approve and Adopt Resolution No. 2015-07 to Revise Park Rules and Regulations Forms and Fees for the Town of 
Discovery Bay CSD owned and maintained Parks and Facilities 
  
Recommended Action 
 

Approve and Adopt Resolution No. 2015-07 to Revise Park Rules and Regulations Forms and Fees for the Town of 
Discovery Bay CSD owned and maintained Parks and Facilities 
  
Executive Summary 
 

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors (Board) approved and adopted the current 
Park Rules & Regulations and Reservation policies and forms on July 16, 2013 and revisions thereafter on January 8, 
2014 & May 7, 2014 
 

Since the time of adoption of the latest revision, staff has had multiple inquires about the rental of the entire Community 
Center facility. This has included the use of the entire inside of the Community Center, as well as the entire grounds. 
The current fees related to our Discovery Bay Community Center were set for individually renting a specific room or area 
of the Community Center. 
 

The Park and Facility Rental Fee Schedule had several changes.  First, The Facility Rental Fee Schedule has added 
new rates to rent the entire Community Center based on whether the renter wanted just inside the Community Center or 
the entire grounds of the Community Center including the BBQ area and Event Lawn. Options to include the swimming 
pool have also been added.  The Park Rental Fee Schedule has also been revised to add the Community Center’s 
Event Lawn, with revised fees to the Community Center’s BBQ area, and Cornell Park’s Shaded Picnic Area. 
 

To assist the Board in determining the Market Rate for these facilities and the viability of the fees, a picnic area 
comparison spreadsheet was created and attached herein.   
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:        
Amount Requested - None.  

 

 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
July 16, 2013 – Approval and Adoption of Park Rules & Regulations and Reservation Forms and Fees 
January 8, 2014 – Approval and Adoption of  revised Park Rules & Regulations and Reservation Forms and Fees 
August 21, 2013 – Approval of the Discovery Bay Community Center Pool Schedule and Fee Schedule 
May 7, 2014 -  Approval and Adoption of  revised Park Rules & Regulations and Reservation Forms and Fees 
 
 
Attachments 
 
DRAFT Facility Rental Fee Schedule, Rev. date 04.27.15 
DRAFT Park Rental Fee Schedule, Rev. date 04.29.15   
DRAFT Picnic Rental Comparison, 04.29.15 
Resolution No. 2015-07 
 

AGENDA ITEM: G-2 

Cinderella
Stamp



TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FACILITY RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District  Page 1 of 2 

Facility Rental Fee Schedule, Draft  04.29.15 

Pending Adoption 

 

 

Indoor Facilities Week Day (M-F)  Week End  5+ Hours Deposit 

Community Center – 
Reception Area 

Capacity: 80 

Private                        $37.50 / Hour 
Non-Profit                  $28.50 / Hour 
Commercial               $49.00 / Hour 

Private                        $45.00 / Hour 
Non-Profit                  $34.50 / Hour 
Commercial               $59.00 / Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$200.00 

Community Center – 
Arts Room or 

Multi-Purpose Room 
Capacity: 30 

Private                        $29.00 / Hour 
Non-Profit                  $22.00 / Hour 
Commercial               $38.00 / Hour 

Private                        $35.00 / Hour 
Non-Profit                  $26.50 / Hour 
Commercial               $45.75 / Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$200.00 

Community Center – 
Swimming Pool 
Up to 60 People 

Private                        $150.00 /Hour 
Non-Profit                  $120.00 /Hour 
Commercial               $195.00 /Hour 

Private                        $150.00 /Hour 
Non-Profit                  $120.00/Hour 
Commercial               $195.00 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$200.00 

Community Center – 
Swimming Pool 
60 - 140 People 

Private                        $165.00 /Hour 
Non-Profit                  $135.00 /Hour 
Commercial               $210.00 /Hour 

Private                        $165.00 /Hour 
Non-Profit                  $135.00/Hour 
Commercial               $210.00 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$200.00 

Multiple Facilities Week Day (M-F) Week End 5+ Hours Deposit 

Entire Community 
Center – Indoor Only 

Private                        $95.50./Hour 
Non-Profit                  $72.50 /Hour 
Commercial               $125.00 /Hour 

Private                        $115.00 /Hour 
Non-Profit                  $87.50/Hour 
Commercial               $150.50 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$500 

Event Lawn & BBQ 
Area  

Private                        $20.00./Hour 
Non-Profit                  $15.00 /Hour 
Commercial               $30.00 /Hour 

Private                        $20.00./Hour 
Non-Profit                  $15.00 /Hour 
Commercial               $30.00 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$50 

Entire Community 
Center 

Indoor/Outdoor 
NO POOL 

Private                        $115.50./Hour 
Non-Profit                  $87.50 /Hour 
Commercial               $155.00 /Hour 

Private                       $135.00./Hour 
Non-Profit                 $102.50 /Hour 
Commercial              $180.50 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$500 

Entire Community 
Center 

Indoor/Outdoor 
Pool 1 Lifeguard 

Private                        $265.50./Hour 
Non-Profit                  $207.50 /Hour 
Commercial               $350.00 /Hour 

Private                       $285.00./Hour 
Non-Profit                 $222.50 /Hour 
Commercial              $375.50 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$500 

Entire Community 
Center 

Indoor/Outdoor 
Pool 2 Lifeguards 

Private                        $280.50./Hour 
Non-Profit                  $222.50 /Hour 
Commercial               $365.00 /Hour 

Private                       $300.00./Hour 
Non-Profit                 $237.50 /Hour 
Commercial               $390.50 /Hour 

20% Discount 
on Entire Rental 

$500 

 
 

Non-Profit groups shall present verified and current 501(c)(4) non-profit status at the time of the reservation request. 

Agenda Item G-2



TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FACILITY RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District  Page 2 of 2 

Facility Rental Fee Schedule, Draft  04.29.15 

Pending Adoption 

 

 

 

Long-term, or reoccurring rentals (more than 16 hours) will be considered only if space and schedule allow.  Pricing and 
terms will be negotiated by Staff, with final approval by General Manager. 
 
Reservations for multiple items (ex., two rooms) will receive a 15% discount off the second rental.  Rental must be for the 
same time period and will apply to the room with the lowest rate. 
 
Facility Rentals which require special set up of tables/chairs or other District owned equipment require a 2-hour minimum.   
 
 “Commercial” shall include those individuals and/or groups which operate trainings, lessons or games for profit. 
 
Swimming pool rentals are only available during non-recreational swim and/or aquatics programming hours.  You may 
check availability with the Recreation Programs Coordinator.   
 
Swimming pool rentals require a 3-hour minimum.  
 
Swimming pool rental fee for Groups under 60 includes one (1) lifeguard. 
 
Swimming pool rental fee for Groups between 60 and 140 (maximum capacity) includes two (2) lifeguards.   
 
Lifeguards are required for pool rentals.  
 

 

Agenda Item G-2



 

 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District  Page 1 of 2 

Park & Facility Rental Fee Schedule – Revised April 27, 2015 

 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

PARKS RENTAL 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Park Area Hourly Half Day (6 Hour) Daily (Operating Hours) Deposit 

Cornell Park – 
Tennis Court OR 
Pickle Ball (Single Courts) 

Resident:                           $5.00 
Non-Resident:                  $7.50 
Organization/League:     $7.50 
Non-Profit:                       $5.00 

Resident:                             $25.00 
Non-Resident:                    $37.50 
Organization/League:       $37.50 
Non-Profit:                         $25.00 

Resident:                           $50.00 
Non-Resident:                  $75.00 
Organization/League:     $75.00 
Non-Profit:                       $50.00 

$50.00* 

Cornell Park – 
Baseball Field 

Resident:                           $5.00 
Non-Resident:                  $7.50 
Organization/League:     $7.50 
Non-Profit:                       $5.00 

Resident:                             $25.00 
Non-Resident:                    $37.50 
Organization/League:       $37.50 
Non-Profit:                         $25.00 

Resident:                           $50.00 
Non-Resident:                  $75.00 
Organization/League:     $75.00 
Non-Profit:                       $50.00 

$100.00 

Cornell Park – 
Soccer Field 

Resident:                           $3.50 
Non-Resident:                  $5.25 
Organization/League:     $5.25 
Non-Profit:                       $3.50 

Resident:                            $17.50 
Non-Resident:                   $26.25 
Organization/League:      $26.25 
Non-Profit:                         $17.50 

Resident:                           $35.00 
Non-Resident:                  $50.00 
Organization/League:     $50.00 
Non-Profit:                       $35.00 

$50.00 

Cornell Park – 
Shaded Picnic Area 

Resident:                           $10.00 
Non-Resident:                  $15.00 
Organization/League:     $15.00 
Non-Profit:                       $7.50 

Resident:                           $50.00 
Non-Resident:                  $75.00 
Organization/League:     $75.00 
Non-Profit:                       $37.50 

Resident:                           $80.00 
Non-Resident:                  $150.00 
Organization/League:     $150.00 
Non-Profit:                       $75.00 

$50.00 

Cornell Park – 
Bocce Ball Courts 

Resident:                           $3.50 
Non-Resident:                  $5.25 
Organization/League:     $5.25 
Non-Profit:                       $3.50 

Resident:                           $17.50 
Non-Resident:                  $37.50 
Organization/League:     $37.50 
Non-Profit:                       $17.50 

Resident:                           $35.00 
Non-Resident:                  $50.00 
Organization/League:     $50.00 
Non-Profit:                       $35.00 

$25.00* 

Cornell Park – 
Horse Shoe Pits 

Resident:                           $3.50 
Non-Resident:                  $5.25 
Organization/League:     $5.25 
Non-Profit:                       $3.50 

Resident:                           $17.50 
Non-Resident:                  $37.50 
Organization/League:     $37.50 
Non-Profit:                       $17.50 

Resident:                           $35.00 
Non-Resident:                  $50.00 
Organization/League:     $50.00 
Non-Profit:                       $35.00 

$25.00* 

Ravenswood Park - 
Covered Picnic Tables 
Area 1 or Area 2 

Resident:                           $6.00 
Non-Resident:                  $8.50 
Organization/League:     $8.50 
Non-Profit:                       $6.00 

Resident:                           $30.00 
Non-Resident:                  $42.50 
Organization/League:     $42.50 
Non-Profit:                       $30.00 

Resident:                           $60.00 
Non-Resident:                  $85.00 
Organization/League:     $85.00 
Non-Profit:                       $60.00 

$50.00 

Ravenswood Park – 
Soccer Field 

Resident:                           $3.50 
Non-Resident:                  $5.25 
Organization/League:     $5.25 
Non-Profit:                       $3.50 

Resident:                            $17.50 
Non-Resident:                   $26.25 
Organization/League:      $26.25 
Non-Profit:                         $17.50 

Resident:                           $35.00 
Non-Resident:                  $50.00 
Organization/League:     $50.00 
Non-Profit:                       $35.00 

$50.00 

Community Center – 
Tennis Courts 
(Single Court Fees) 

Resident:                           $5.00 
Non-Resident:                  $7.50 
Organization/League:     $7.50 
Non-Profit:                       $5.00 

Resident:                             $25.00 
Non-Resident:                    $37.50 
Organization/League:       $37.50 
Non-Profit:                         $25.00 

Resident:                           $50.00 
Non-Resident:                  $75.00 
Organization/League:     $75.00 
Non-Profit:                       $50.00 

$50.00* 

Community Center – 
BBQ Area 

Resident:                           $10.00 
Non-Resident:                  $15.00 
Organization/League:     $15.00 
Non-Profit:                       $7.50 

Resident:                           $50.00 
Non-Resident:                  $75.00 
Organization/League:     $75.00 
Non-Profit:                       $37.50 

Resident:                           $80.00 
Non-Resident:                  $150.00 
Organization/League:     $150.00 
Non-Profit:                       $75.00 

$50.00 

Community Center – 
Event Lawn  

Resident:                           $10.00 
Non-Resident:                  $15.00 
Organization/League:     $15.00 
Non-Profit:                       $7.50 

Resident:                           $50.00 
Non-Resident:                  $75.00 
Organization/League:     $75.00 
Non-Profit:                       $37.50 

Resident:                           $80.00 
Non-Resident:                  $150.00 
Organization/League:     $150.00 
Non-Profit:                       $75.00 

$50.00 

Park use is on a first come, first served basis.  Reservations are strongly encouraged and are REQUIRED by Sports Leagues/Organizations 
(regardless if use is for organized practice or game play), for groups over 50, and any time a user intends to bring inflatable play equipment into 
the park. 

Any user who has made a reservation has priority over a user that has not made a reservation. 

Residents must show proof of residency at time of reservation request. 

Non-Profit groups shall present verified non-profit status at the time of the reservation request. 

Long-term rentals:  Fees and other terms will be outlined in a separate Memorandum of Understanding.   

Facility Rentals which require special set up of tables/chairs or other District owned equipment requires a 2-hour minimum.   

“Organization” or “Commercial” shall include those individuals and/or groups which operate trainings, lessons or games for profit. 

* Deposits on Horse Shoe Pits, Bocce Courts and Tennis Courts shall be waived if reserved for less than 3 hours; unless equipment is requested. 

Agenda Item G-2



 

 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District  Page 2 of 2 

Park & Facility Rental Fee Schedule – Revised April 27, 2015 

 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

PARKS RENTAL 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Fee for Cancellation Processing.  50% of the total Rental fee or $35, whichever is less. 

Agenda Item G-2



Park Rental Comparison

Prices valid as of April 27, 2015

Current DB Rates Suggested Rate* Comp. Avg.  Antioch  Tracy  Brentwood  Oakley

Capacity all rentals Daily 4 hour Minimum 2 hour Minimum

Resident (Hourly) 7.50$                       10.00$                    17.47$                    N/A 24.00$             18.40$             10.00$                 

Resident (Half Day 6 Hours) 37.50$                    50.00$                    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Resident (Daily) 75.00$                    80.00$                    114.90$                  164.00$           N/A 110.70$          70.00$                 

Non-Profit (Hourly) 7.50$                       7.50$                       11.93$                    N/A 13.00$             12.80$             10.00$                 

Non-Profit (Half Day 6 Hours) 37.50$                    37.50$                    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Non-Profit (Daily) 75.00$                    75.00$                    97.13$                    164.00$           N/A 77.40$             50.00$                 

Non-Resident (Hourly) 10.00$                    15.00$                    21.95$                    N/A N/A 23.90$             $20.00

Non-Resident (Half Day 6 Hours) 50.00$                    75.00$                    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Non-Resident (Daily) 100.00$                  150.00$                  135.97$                  164.00$           N/A 143.90$          $100.00

Organizations/Leagues (Hourly) 10.00$                    15.00$                    39.30$                    N/A 34.00$             23.90$             60.00$                 

Organizations/Leagues(Half Day 6 Hours) 50.00$                    75.00$                    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Organizations/Leagues (Daily) 100.00$                  150.00$                  235.97$                  164.00$           N/A 143.90$          400.00$               

Picnic Areas

Agenda Item G-2



 

 

1 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
ADOPTION OF REVISIED PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS 

FORMS AND FEES 
 
 

WHEREAS, The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District owns and maintains parks 
located within Discovery Bay; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District adopted Park Rules and 
Regulations Forms and Fees on July 16, 2013; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District previously adopted 
revisions to those documents on January 8, 2014 and May 7, 2014, respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to revise the fee schedule for park and facility usage; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the Board adopt Facility Rental Fee Schedule, the Swimming Pool Fee 
Schedule, and the Park Rental Fee Schedule, all of which are attached and included as a part of this 
Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2.  The Board Secretary shall certify the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 6

th
 DAY OF May 2015. 

 
       
      Chris Steele 
      Board President 
 
 

_________________________ 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District at a special meeting, held on May 6, 2015, by the following 
vote of the Board: 
 
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
  ABSTAIN: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Richard J. Howard, Board Secretary 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 2015-07 

 

 

 

Agenda Item G-2



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

May 6, 2015 

 
Prepared By: Carol McCool, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Agency Comment Request – Variance Permit Application VP15-1014 – Front Yard Variance Request – 4525 Discovery 
Point, Discovery Bay 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
As Necessary 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and Development has requested Board input into the proposed 
approval for the front yard variance at the home on 4525 Discovery Point, Discovery Bay. 
 
The request is a variance of 15 feet proposed where 20 feet is the required minimum.  The purpose of the change is for 
the construction of a new 3,200 square foot, 2 story residence. 
 
The Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and Development is seeking Board input into this proposed 
application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 

Amount Requested  $ N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
N/A 
 
  
Attachments 
  
Agency Comment Request – VR15-1014 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: G-3 

Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item G-3



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



DRAFT

Agenda Item H-1



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item I

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item J

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item K-1

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



 
 

 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED EMERGENCY REGULATION 

IMPLEMENTING THE 25% CONSERVATION STANDARD 

 

 
On April 1, 2015, Governor Jerry Brown issued the fourth in a series of Executive Orders on 
actions necessary to address California’s severe drought conditions.  With snowpack water 
content at a record low level of 5 percent of average for April 1st , major reservoir storage 
shrinking each day as a percentage of their daily average measured over the last several 
decades, and groundwater levels continuing to decline, urgent action is needed.  The April 1 
Executive Order requires, for the first time in the State’s history, mandatory conservation of 
potable urban water use.  Commercial agriculture in many parts of the State has already been 
notified of severe cutbacks in water supply contracted through the State and Federal Water 
Projects and is bracing for curtailments of surface water rights in the near-term.  Conserving 
water more seriously now will forestall even more catastrophic impacts if it does not rain next 
year. 

 

Stakeholder Involvement 

To maximize input in a short amount of time, the State Water Board released a proposed 
regulatory framework for implementing the 25% conservation standard on April 7, 2015 for 
public input.  Over 250 comments were submitted by water suppliers, local government, 
businesses, individuals, and non-governmental organizations. Draft regulations that 
considered this input were released on April 18 for informal public comment.  Almost 300 
comments were received that addressed the methodology for the assignment of conservation 
standards, the availability of exclusions or adjustments under defined conditions, how to 
approach the commercial, industrial and institutional (CII) sector, the requirements for smaller 
water suppliers, and the approach to enforcement.  A Notice of Proposed Emergency 
Regulations, which considers this input and initiates the formal emergency rulemaking 
process, was released on April 28, 2015.  If approved, water savings amounting to 
approximately 1.3 million acre-feet of water, or nearly as much water as is currently in Lake 
Oroville, will be realized over the next nine months. 

 

What’s Next 

The Notice of Proposed Emergency Rulemaking begins a formal comment period that will 
conclude just prior to the State Water Board’s consideration of adoption of the proposed 
emergency regulation at its May 5-6, 2015 meeting.  The formal comment period will conclude 
on May 4, 2015 at 10:00am.  All comments will be immediately provided to the Board Members 
and posted on the State Water Board’s webpage at: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_manda
tory_regulations.shtml 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_mandatory_regulations.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_mandatory_regulations.shtml


 
 

During this formal notice period, all comments must be received by 10:00am on Monday 
May 4, 2015 and submitted either electronically to: commentletters@waterboards.ca.gov or in 
writing to the address in the Notice.  All comments should indicate on the subject line: 
“Comment Letter – Emergency Conservation Regulation.”   
 

Proposed Emergency Regulation - Key Provisions  

 

Conservation Standard for Urban Water Suppliers 
As drought conditions continue, all water suppliers will need to do more to meet the statewide 
25% conservation standard.  Since the State Water Board adopted its initial emergency urban 
conservation regulation in July 2014, statewide conservation has reached 9%. Everyone must 
do more, but the greatest opportunities to meet the statewide 25% conservation standard exist 
in those areas with higher water use.  Often, but not always, these water suppliers are located 
in areas where the majority of the water use is directed at outdoor irrigation due to lot size, 
climate and other factors.  As temperatures are forecast to climb to above average for the 
summer months, it will become even more important to take aggressive actions to reduce 
outdoor water use. The emergency regulation establishes tiers of required water reductions 
that emphasize the opportunities to reduce outdoor water use.  
 
Many comments spoke to the question of fairness and equity in the construction of the tiers in 
earlier drafts of the regulation.  Concerns were raised about accounting for factors that 
influence water use, such as past conservation, climate, lot size, density, and income.  
Ultimately, the tier structure proposed on April 18, 2015 was maintained as the best way to 
achieve the 25% water reduction called for by the Governor.   
 
Feedback is specifically requested on whether the conservation framework should be modified 
to double the number of tiers and use two percent increments instead of four percent.  This 
change would provide further refinement for water suppliers that find themselves on one side 
or the other of a tier. 
 
The conservation savings for all urban water suppliers are allocated across nine tiers of 
increasing levels of residential water use (R-GPCD) to reach the statewide 25 percent 
reduction mandate.  This approach lessens the disparities in reduction requirements between 
agencies that have similar levels of water consumption, but fall on different sides of dividing 
lines between tiers.   Suppliers have been assigned a conservation standard that ranges 
between 8% and 36% based on their R-GPCD for the months of July – September, 2014.  
These three months reflect the amount of water used for summer outdoor irrigation, which 
provides the greatest opportunity for conservation savings.  Some suppliers may be eligible, 
under specific conditions, for placement into a lower 4% conservation tier.  Water suppliers 
that reduced their water use prior to the drought will have a lower R-GPCD and thus a lower 
conservation standard than water suppliers with similar climate and  
density factors where R-GPCD remains high. 
 
 

Agenda Item K-2

mailto:commentletters@waterboards.ca.gov


 
 

The Smith family of three learns that 

their water district must reduce water 

use by 12 percent.  A manufacturing 

plant uses 20 percent of the water 

and cannot reduce its use.  So, 

residents are told to reduce their use 

by 15 percent to meet the overall 12 

percent target.   The Smith family 

uses an average of 210 gallons per 

day (or about 70 gallons per person), 

165 gallons for indoor use and 45 

gallons for watering their small yard.  

To meet the 15% reduction 

requirement they must reduce total 

water use to about 180 gallons per 

day.  This is equivalent to about 60 

gallons per person per day. 

 

Urban water suppliers (serving more than 3,000 
customers or delivering more than 3,000 acre feet of 
water per year and accounting for more than 90% of 
urban water use) will be assigned a conservation 
standard, as shown in the following table:   
 

Tier 

R-GPCD 
Range 

# of 
Suppliers 
in Range 

Conservation 
Standard 

From To 

1 reserved   0 4% 

2 0 64.9 23 8% 

3 65 79.9 24 12% 

4 80 94.9 44 16% 

5 95 109.9 51 20% 

6 110 129.9 48 24% 

7 130 169.9 82 28% 

8 170 214.9 54 32% 

9 215 612.0 85 36% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exceptions 
The proposed regulation allows water suppliers to request to modify their total water use or be 
placed into a lower conservation tier under two situations: 
 

1. Urban water suppliers delivering more than 20 percent of their total water production to 
commercial agriculture may be allowed to modify the amount of water subject to their 
conservation standard.  These suppliers must provide written certification to the Board 
to be able to subtract the water supplied to commercial agriculture from their total water 
production for baseline and conservation purposes.   

2. Urban water suppliers that have a reserve supply of surface water that could last at 
least four years may be eligible for placement into lower conservation tier.  Only 
suppliers meeting the eligibility criteria will be considered.  These criteria relate to the 
source(s) of supply, storage capacity, and the number of years that those supplies could 
last. 

The Jones family of four learn that their water district must reduce water use by 32 percent.  An oil 

refinery uses 10 percent of the district’s water and cannot reduce its use.  Their city also has many small 

businesses, and a golf course, which can reduce use by more than 10 percent.  The residents must now 

reduce their use by 30 percent to meet the overall 32 percent target.  The Jones family uses an average of 

1,200 gallons per day (or about 300 gallons per person); 300 gallons for indoor use and 900 gallons 

outdoors, to irrigate a large yard that includes grass and fruit trees.  To cut water use by 30 percent, the 

Jones’ must cut their water use by 360 gallons per day to 840 gallons which is equivalent to 210 gallons 

per person per day. 

 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

 
Feedback is specifically requested on whether the regulation should allow water suppliers 
whose supplies include groundwater to apply for inclusion the 4% reserve tier if it can be 
demonstrated that they have a minimum of 4 years of supply, do not rely upon imported water, 
and their groundwater supplies recharge naturally. 
 
Commercial, Industrial and Institutional Sector Clarification 
There are no specific use reduction targets for commercial, industrial, and institutional users 
served by urban and all other water suppliers. Water suppliers will decide how to meet their 
conservation standard through reductions from both residential and non-residential users. 
Water suppliers are encouraged to look at their commercial, institutional and industrial 
properties that irrigate outdoor ornamental landscapes with potable water for potential 
conservation savings. 
 
 
Conservation Standard For All Other Water Suppliers 
Smaller water suppliers (serving fewer than 3,000 connections) will be required to achieve a 
25% conservation standard or restrict outdoor irrigation to no more than two days per week.  
These smaller urban suppliers serve less than 10% of Californians. 
 
 
End-User Requirements 
The new prohibitions in the Executive Order apply to all Californians and will take effect 
immediately upon approval of the regulation by the Office of Administrative Law. These 
include: 
 

 Irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians is prohibited; 
and 

 Irrigation with potable water outside of newly constructed homes and buildings not in 
accordance with emergency regulations or other requirements established in the 
California Building Standards Code is prohibited. 

 
These are in addition to the existing restrictions that prohibit:  

 Using potable water to wash sidewalks and driveways;  

 Allowing runoff when irrigating with potable water;  

 Using hoses with no shutoff nozzles to wash cars;  

 Using potable water in decorative water features that do not recirculate the water;  

 Irrigating outdoors during and within 48 hours following measureable rainfall; and 

 Restaurants from serving water to their customers unless the customer requests it.  
 
Additionally, hotels and motels must offer their guests the option to not have their linens and 
towels laundered daily, and prominently display this option in each guest room.  
 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

It will be very important as these provisions are implemented to ensure that existing trees 
remain healthy and do not present a public safety hazard.  Guidance on the implementation of 
both prohibitions will be developed. 
 
Self-Supplied CII 
Commercial, industrial and institutional properties under Provision 5 of the Executive Order 
with an independent source of water supply (not served by a water supplier), are required 
under the proposed emergency regulation to either limit outdoor irrigation to two days per week 
or achieve a 25% reduction in water use.  Often, these properties have large landscapes that 
would otherwise not be addressed by this regulation. 
 
New Reporting Requirements 
Total monthly water production and specific reporting on residential use and enforcement as 
laid out in the previously adopted emergency regulations will remain in effect.  Because the 
conservation standard applies to total water production, the proposed emergency regulation 
expands the reporting to include information on water use in the commercial, industrial, and 
institutional sectors. Small water suppliers with fewer than 3,000 service connections will be 
required to submit a single report on December 15, 2015 that provides their water production 
from June-November 2015 and June-November 2013 and the number of days per week 
outdoor irrigation is allowed. 
 
Commercial, industrial, and institutional facilities with an independent source of supply (they 
are not served by a water supplier) are not required to submit a report; however they should be 
prepared to demonstrate their compliance with the two day per week watering restriction or the 
25% reduction in water use if requested to do so by the Board.   
 
Compliance Assessment 
In many communities around the state, over half (and up to 80 percent) of total residential 
water use is for outdoor irrigation during the summer months.  With summer just around the 
corner, bringing with it the greatest opportunity for making substantial conservation gains, 
immediate action is essential.  As a result, the Board will begin assessing compliance with the 
submittal of the June monthly report on July 15, 2015.  Beyond June, the Board will track 
compliance on a cumulative basis.  Cumulative tracking means that conservation savings will 
be added together from one month to the next and compared to the amount of water used 
during the same months in 2013.  This tracking will look like the sample graph below.   

 
Example Comparison of Monthly Savings and Cumulative Savings 

  

2013 
Water Use 

2015 Water 
Use 

Monthly 
savings 

Cumulative or 
Running 
Savings 

June 1000 800 20% 20% 

July 1500 1050 30% 26% 

August 1200 1020 15% 22% 

September 900 825 8% 20% 

 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

20%

30%

15%

8%

20%

26%

22%

20%

June July August September

Monthly savings

Cumulative or Running Savings

 
 
Two additional tools are included in the proposed emergency regulation to both expedite the 
investigation of water suppliers not meeting their conservation standard and to require the 
implementation of actions to correct this situation.  A proposed informational order would 
require water suppliers to respond to request for information or face immediate enforcement.  
The proposed conservation order can be used to direct specific actions to correct non-
compliance.  Both of these tools are tailored to the emergency circumstances that the State 
finds itself in as a result of continuing drought conditions.  Violation of an information or 
conservation order carries a penalty of up to $500 per day.   
 
The Board will work with water suppliers along the way that are not meeting their targets to 
implement actions to get them back on track.  These actions could include changes to rates 
and pricing, restrictions on outdoor irrigation, public outreach, rebates and audit programs, leak 
detection and repair, and other measures.  The Board may use its enforcement tools to ensure 
that water suppliers are on track to meet their conservation standards at any point during the 
270 days that the emergency regulation is in effect.    
 

 

Conclusion 
 
No one knows how the future will unfold.  While the state may return to “normal,” or even to 
above average hydrologic water conditions in 2016, such an outcome is far from certain.  If 
there is a fifth, or even sixth, year of water scarcity the emergency regulation will have 
contributed to safeguarding the state’s future water supplies, thereby forestalling potentially 
dramatic economic consequences. An example of the challenge facing the State comes from 
Australia, which experienced persistent and severe drought across most of its continent 
between 2002 and 2012.  Over the full course of the 10 years of drought, half a percentage 
point may have been shaved from Australia’s GDP growth rate due to water curtailments, 
lowered productivity, unemployment and reduced exports.  A half-point reduction in GDP 
growth is significant:  if this were to occur in California, cumulative state output would be 
reduced by close to half a trillion dollars over the same 10-year span of time. 
 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

The State Water Board is committed to working with water suppliers around the State on 
implementation of the emergency regulation to reduce the risk that the State faces if drought 
conditions do not abate.  A workshop to discuss implementation of the emergency regulation 
will be scheduled for October 2015, and the Board will continue to receive monthly updates 
and hear public comment as it has been doing since adopting its initial emergency regulation in 
July 2014. 
 
As Governor Brown said on April 1, 2015, when announcing his fourth Executive Order since 
the drought began, “All of us in so many different parts of California, doing so many different 
things, have to now pull together in our own different contexts to do what is required.” 
 
(This fact sheet was last updated on April 28, 2015) 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

PROPOSED TEXT OF EMERGENCY REGULATION 
 
Article 22.5.  Drought Emergency Water Conservation. 
 
Sec. 863. Findings of Drought Emergency. 
 (a) The State Water Resources Control Board finds as follows: 
 (1) On January 17, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a state of 
emergency under the California Emergency Services Act based on drought conditions; 
 (2) On April 25, 2014, the Governor issued a proclamation of a continued state of 
emergency under the California Emergency Services Act based on continued drought 
conditions; 
 (3)  On April 1, 2015, the Governor issued an Executive Order that, in part,  
directs the State Board to impose restrictions on water suppliers to achieve a statewide 25 
percent reduction in potable urban usage through February 28, 2016; require commercial, 
industrial, and institutional users to implement water efficiency measures; prohibit 
irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf in public street medians; and prohibit 
irrigation with potable water outside newly constructed homes and buildings that is not 
delivered by drip or microspray systems; 
 (34) The drought conditions that formed the basis of the Governor’s emergency 
proclamations continue to exist; 
 (45) The present year is critically dry and has been immediately preceded by two 
or more consecutive below normal, dry, or critically dry years; and 
 (56) The drought conditions will likely continue for the foreseeable future and 
additional action by both the State Water Resources Control Board and local water 
suppliers will likely be necessary to prevent waste and unreasonable use of water and to 
further promote conservation. 
 
Authority: Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References: Cal. Const., Art., X § 2; Sections 102, 104, and 105, and 275, Water Code; 
Light v. State Water Resources Control Board (2014) 226 Cal.App.4th 1463. 
   
 
Sec. 864. End-User Requirements in Promotion of Water Conservation. 
 (a) To prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water and to promote water 
conservation, each of the following actions is prohibited, except where necessary to 
address an immediate health and safety need or to comply with a term or condition in a 
permit issued by a state or federal agency: 
 (1) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes 
runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and 
public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures; 
 (2) The use of a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, except 
where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that causes it to 
cease dispensing water immediately when not in use; 
 (3) The application of potable water to driveways and sidewalks; and 
 (4) The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water feature, 
except where the water is part of a recirculating system; 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

 (5)  The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes during and within 48 
hours after measurable rainfall; and  
 (6)  The serving of drinking water other than upon request in eating or drinking 
establishments, including but not limited to restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, bars, or 
other public places where food or drink are served and/or purchased.; 
 (7)  The irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians; 
and 
 (8)  The irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly constructed 
homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip or microspray systemsin a manner 
inconsistent with regulations or other requirements established by the California Building 
Standards Commission. 
 (b)  To promote water conservation, operators of hotels and motels shall provide 
guests with the option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily.  The 
hotel or motel shall prominently display notice of this option in each guestroom using 
clear and easily understood language. 
 (c)  Immediately upon this subdivision taking effect, all commercial, industrial 
and institutional properties that use a water supply any portion of which is from a source 
other than not served by a water supplier meeting the requirements of Water Code section 
10617 or section 350 subject to section 865shall either: 

(1)  Limit outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water 
to no more than two days per week; or 

(2)  Reduce potable water usage by 25 percent for the months of June 2015 
through February 2016 as compared to the amount used for the same months in 2013. 
 (cd) The taking of any action prohibited in subdivision (a) or the failure to take 
any action required in subdivisions (b) or (c), in addition to any other applicable civil or 
criminal penalties, is an infraction, punishable by a fine of up to five hundred dollars 
($500) for each day in which the violation occurs. The fine for the infraction is in 
addition to, and does not supersede or limit, any other remedies, civil or criminal. 
 
Authority: Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References: Cal. Const., Art., X § 2; Sections 102, 104, and 105, 275, 350, and 10617, 
Water Code; Light v. State Water Resources Control Board (2014) 226 Cal.App.4th 
1463. 
 
 
Sec. 865. Mandatory Actions by Water Suppliers. 

(a) As used in this section: 
(1) “Distributor of a public water supply” has the same meaning as under 

section 350 of the Water Code. 
(2) “R-GPCD” means residential gallons per capita per day. 
(3) “Total potable water production” means all potable water that enters 

into a water supplier’s distribution system, excluding water placed into 
storage and not withdrawn for use during the reporting period, or water 
exported outsider the supplier’s service area. 

(4) The term “uUrban water supplier,” when used in this section, refers 
tomeans a supplier that meets the definition set forth in Water Code 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

section 10617, except it does not refer to suppliers when they are 
functioning solely in a wholesale capacity, but does apply to suppliers 
when they are functioning in a retail capacity. 

(b)(1) To promote water conservation, each urban water supplier shall implement 
all requirements and actions of the stage of its water shortage contingency plan that 
imposes includes mandatory restrictions on the number of days that outdoor irrigation of 
ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water is allowed, or shall amend its water 
shortage contingency plan to include mandatory restrictions on the number of days that 
outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water is allowed and 
implement these restrictions within forty-five (45) days. Urban water suppliers with 
approved alternate plans as described in subdivision (b)(2) are exempted from this 
requirement. 

(2) An urban water supplier may submit a request to the Executive Director for 
approval of an alternate plan that includes allocation-based rate structures that satisfies 
the requirements of chapter 3.4 (commencing with section 370) of division 1 of the Water 
Code, and the Executive Director may approve such an alternate plan upon determining 
that the rate structure, in conjunction with other measures, achieves a level of 
conservation that would be superior to that achieved by implementing limitations on 
outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it 
serves to no more than two days per week. 
 (c) To promote water conservation, each urban water supplier that does not have a 
water shortage contingency plan that restricts the number of days that outdoor irrigation 
of ornamental landscapes and turf with potable water is allowed, or has been notified by 
the Department of Water Resources that its water shortage contingency plan does not 
meet the requirements of Water Code section 10632 shall, within forty-five (45) days, 
limit outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water by the 
persons it serves to no more than two days per week. 
 (db) In furtherance of the promotion of water conservation each urban water 
supplier shall: 

(1) Provide prompt notice to a customer whenever the supplier obtains 
information that indicates that a leak may exist within the end-user’s exclusive control. 

(2) Prepare and submit to the State Water Resources Control Board by the 15th of 
each month a monitoring report on forms provided by the Board.  The monitoring report 
shall include the amount of potable water the urban water supplier produced, including 
water provided by a wholesaler, in the preceding calendar month and shall compare that 
amount to the amount produced in the same calendar month in 2013.  The monitoring 
report shall specify the population served by the urban water supplier, the percentage of 
water produced that is used for the residential sector, descriptive statistics on water 
conservation compliance and enforcement efforts, and the number of days that outdoor 
irrigation is allowed, and monthly commercial sector use, monthly industrial sector use, 
and monthly institutional sector use. The monitoring report shall also estimate the gallons 
of water per person per day used by the residential customers it serves.   

(c)(1)  To prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water and to meet the 
requirements of the Governor’s April 1, 2015 Executive Order, each urban water supplier 
shall reduce its total potable water production by the percentage identified as its 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

conservation standard in this subdivision.  Each urban water supplier’s conservation 
standard considers its service area’s relative per capita water usage.  

(2) Each urban water supplier whose source of supply does not include 
groundwater or water imported from outside the hydrologic region in which the water 
supplier is located, and that received average annual precipitation in has a minimum of 
four years’ reserved supply available may, notwithstanding its average July-September 
2014 R-GPCD, submit forto the Executive Director for approval a request that, in lieu of 
the reduction that would otherwise be required under paragraphs (3) through (10), the 
urban water supplier shall to reduce its total potable water usageproduction by 4 percent 
for each month as compared to the amount used in the same month in 2013.  Any such 
request shall be accompanied by information showing that the supplier’s sources of 
supply do not include groundwater or water imported from outside the hydrologic region 
and that the supplier’s service area received average annual precipitation in 2014supplier 
has a minimum of four years’ reserved supply available. 

(3)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
less than 65 shall reduce its total potable water usageproduction by 8 percent for each 
month as compared to the amount used in the same month in 2013. 

(4)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
between 65 or more but less than 80and 79.9 shall reduce its total potable water 
usageproduction by 12 percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the 
same month in 2013. 

(5)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
between 80 or more but less than 95and 94.9 shall reduce its total potable water 
usageproduction by 16 percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the 
same month in 2013. 

(6)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
between 95 or more but less than 110and 109.9 shall reduce its total potable water 
usageproduction by 20 percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the 
same month in 2013. 

(7)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
between 110 or more but less than 130and 129.9 shall reduce its total potable water 
usageproduction by 24 percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the 
same month in 2013. 

(8)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
between 130 or more but less than 170and 169.9 shall reduce its total potable water 
usageproduction by 28 percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the 
same month in 2013. 

(9)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD was 
between 170 or more but less than 215and 214.9 shall reduce its total potable water 
usageproduction by 32 percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the 
same month in 2013. 

(10)  Each urban water supplier whose average July-September 2014 R-GPCD 
was greater than 215 or more shall reduce its total potable water usageproduction by 36 
percent for each month as compared to the amount used in the same month in 2013. 

(d)(1) Beginning June 1, 2015, each urban water supplier shall comply with the 
conservation standard specified in subdivision (c).   

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

 (2)  Compliance with the requirements of this subdivision shall be measured 
monthly and assessed on a cumulative basis.   

(e)  Each urban water supplier that servesprovides 20 percent or more of its total 
potable water production for commercial agricultural use meeting the definition of 
Government Code section 51201, subdivision (ab) may subtract the amount of water 
supplied for commercial agricultural use from its potable water production total, provided 
that the supplier complies with the Agricultural Water Management Plan requirement of 
paragraph 12 of the April 1, 2015 Executive Order.  Each urban water supplier that serves 
20 percent or more of its total potable water production for commercial agricultural use 
meeting the definition of Government Code  section 51201, subdivision (ab) shall certify 
that the agricultural uses it serves meet the definition of Government Code  section 
51201, subdivision (ab), and shall report its total potable water production pursuant to 
subdivision (b)(2), identifying the total amount of water supplied for commercial 
agricultural use. 
 (ef)(1) To prevent waste and unreasonable use of water and to promote water 
conservation, each distributor of a public water supply, as defined in Water Code section 
350, that is not an urban water supplier shall, within forty-five (45) days, take one or 
more of the following actions: 

(1A) Limit outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable water 
by the persons it serves to no more than two days per week; or 

(2B) Implement another mandatory conservation measure or measures intended to 
achieve a 2025 percent reduction in potable water consumption by the persons it serves 
relative to the amount consumed in 2013. 

 (2) Each distributor of a public water supply, as defined in Water Code section 
350, that is not an urban water supplier shall submit a report by December 15, 2015, on a 
form provided by the Board, that includes:either confirms compliance with subdivision 
(f)(1)(A) or identifies : 

(A) total potable water production, by month, from June through November, 
2015, and total potable water production, by month, for June through November 2013; or 

(B)  Confirmation that the distributor limited outdoor irrigation of ornamental 
landscapes or turf with potable water by the persons it serves to no more than two days 
per week. 
 
Authority: Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References: Cal. Const., Art., X § 2; Sections 102, 104, 105, 275, 350, 1846, 10617 
and 10632, Water Code; Light v. State Water Resources Control Board (2014) 226 
Cal.App.4th 1463. 
 
 
Sec. 866. Additional Conservation Tools. 
 (a)(1) To prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water and to promote 
conservation, when a water supplier does not meet its conservation standard required by 
section 865 the Executive Director, or histhe Executive Director’s designee, may issue 
conservation orders requiring additional actions by the supplier to come into compliance 
with its conservation standard. 

Agenda Item K-2



 
 

     (2)  All conservation ordersA decision or order issued under this article by the 
board or an officer or employee of the board shall beis subject to reconsideration under 
article 2 (commencing with section 1122) of chapter 4 of part 1 of division 2 of the 
California Water Code. 
 (b)  The Executive Director, or his designee, may issue an informational order 
requiring water suppliers, or commercial, industrial or institutional properties that receive 
any portion of their supply from a source other thannot served by a water supplier 
meeting the requirements of Water Code section 10617 or section 350subject to section 
865, to submit additional information relating to water production, water use or water 
conservation beyond that required to be reported pursuant to the other provisions of this 
article.  The failure to provide the information requested within 30 days or any additional 
time extension granted is a violation subject to civil liability of up to $500 per day for 
each day the violation continues pursuant to Water Code section 1846. 
 
Authority: Section 1058.5, Water Code. 
References: Cal. Const., Art., X § 2; Sections 100, 102, 104, 105, 174, 186, 187, 275, 
350, 1051, 1122, 1123, 1825, 1846, 10617 and 10632, Water Code; Light v. State Water 
Resources Control Board (2014) 226 Cal.App.4th 1463. 
 

Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Westborough Water District 257,568,499 213,776,790 43,791,709 17% 40.6 2 8%
Arcata  City of 499,104,000 495,047,000 4,057,000 1% 43.5 2 8%
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 20,365,410,000 18,717,900,000 1,647,510,000 8% 45.4 2 8%
Santa Cruz  City of 2,527,700,000 1,933,400,000 594,300,000 24% 47.3 2 8%
California Water Service Company South San Francisco 2,075,673,590 1,907,534,254 168,139,336 8% 48.8 2 8%
California‐American Water Company Monterey District 2,903,844,543 2,590,336,368 313,508,175 11% 51.3 2 8%
California Water Service Company East Los Angeles 3,998,522,861 3,819,956,279 178,566,582 4% 51.4 2 8%
California‐American Water Company San Diego District 2,795,094,888 2,578,195,144 216,899,744 8% 51.9 2 8%
Cambria Community Services District 166,216,813 95,513,570 70,703,243 43% 54.3 2 8%
East Palo Alto, City of 409,886,088 454,911,335 ‐45,025,247 ‐11% 55.6 2 8%
Park Water Company 2,833,164,110 2,598,821,539 234,342,571 8% 55.6 2 8%
San Bruno  City of 929,865,974 849,620,197 80,245,777 9% 55.7 2 8%
Daly City  City of 1,888,066,301 1,622,632,784 265,433,517 14% 58.8 2 8%
North Coast County Water District 809,332,364 713,333,361 95,999,003 12% 59.5 2 8%
Golden State Water Company Florence Graham 1,246,577,219 1,227,482,326 19,094,894 2% 59.7 2 8%
Golden State Water Company Bell‐Bell Gardens 1,279,423,043 1,208,354,847 71,068,196 6% 60.8 2 8%
Coastside County Water District 565,550,000 524,430,000 41,120,000 7% 61.9 2 8%
Hayward  City of 4,474,967,937 3,957,222,483 517,745,455 12% 62.1 2 8%
Grover Beach  City of 352,828,667 208,202,769 144,625,897 41% 62.3 2 8%
Redwood City  City of 2,525,846,774 2,179,170,327 346,676,447 14% 63.4 2 8%
Compton  City of 1,858,895,919 1,837,323,747 21,572,172 1% 63.6 2 8%
Soquel Creek Water District 1,046,626,000 826,889,000 219,737,000 21% 64.2 2 8%
Seal Beach  City of 905,215,264 856,337,550 48,877,714 5% 64.7 2 8%
Inglewood  City of 2,457,964,645 2,284,776,001 173,188,643 7% 65.1 3 12%
Goleta Water District 3,523,431,480 3,053,227,871 470,203,609 13% 65.5 3 12%
Oxnard  City of 5,742,131,037 5,086,123,686 656,007,351 11% 66.6 3 12%
Paramount  City of 1,628,999,712 1,623,382,034 5,617,679 0% 67.0 3 12%
California Water Service Company King City 428,820,478 403,729,918 25,090,560 6% 67.7 3 12%
Golden State Water Company Southwest 7,303,405,789 6,894,299,322 409,106,467 6% 68.2 3 12%
Golden State Water Company Bay Point 512,238,443 452,672,802 59,565,641 12% 69.2 3 12%
San Luis Obispo  City of 1,387,716,506 1,278,706,170 109,010,336 8% 69.9 3 12%
Morro Bay  City of 316,836,255 281,236,756 35,599,499 11% 70.0 3 12%
South Gate  City of 2,066,696,383 2,017,629,675 49,066,708 2% 70.1 3 12%
Vernon  City of 1,907,061,769 1,788,380,162 118,681,607 6% 70.6 3 12%
Huntington Park  City of 1,171,761,731 1,128,423,492 43,338,240 4% 71.3 3 12%
Golden State Water Company Norwalk 1,214,317,928 1,131,519,080 82,798,848 7% 72.2 3 12%
Milpitas  City of 2,719,687,979 2,424,775,231 294,912,748 11% 72.3 3 12%
Estero Municipal Improvement District 1,137,677,797 1,077,438,670 60,239,127 5% 72.8 3 12%

Total Water Production

Page 1  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Golden State Water Company S San Gabriel 664,867,252 637,528,317 27,338,935 4% 73.6 3 12%
Sweetwater Authority 5,185,495,337 4,886,767,783 298,727,554 6% 75.0 3 12%
City of Big Bear Lake, Dept of Water & Power 610,520,000 590,469,860 20,050,140 3% 75.8 3 12%
La Palma  City of 545,401,972 497,342,471 48,059,501 9% 75.9 3 12%
Marina Coast Water District 1,063,425,908 946,396,368 117,029,540 11% 76.0 3 12%
Lompoc  City of 1,253,200,000 1,106,800,000 146,400,000 12% 76.6 3 12%
San Lorenzo Valley Water District 416,952,583 335,050,267 81,902,316 20% 77.9 3 12%
Santa Ana  City of 9,729,076,397 9,323,684,636 405,391,760 4% 78.3 3 12%
Port Hueneme  City of 500,546,894 456,100,759 44,446,135 9% 78.9 3 12%
Santa Fe Springs  City of 1,526,056,730 1,408,567,739 117,488,991 8% 80.1 4 16%
Crestline Village Water District 185,010,871 167,499,027 17,511,844 9% 80.3 4 16%
McKinleyville Community Service District 344,448,000 300,869,000 43,579,000 13% 80.5 4 16%
Montebello Land and Water Company 859,407,071 791,398,619 68,008,451 8% 80.5 4 16%
Sweetwater Springs Water District 208,544,913 177,491,272 31,053,641 15% 80.8 4 16%
Santa Barbara  City of 3,348,530,727 2,632,951,217 715,579,509 21% 80.9 4 16%
Rohnert Park  City of 1,267,000,000 1,124,000,000 143,000,000 11% 81.0 4 16%
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 440,648,885 386,238,213 54,410,671 12% 81.5 4 16%
Valley County Water District 2,033,127,821 1,853,913,772 179,214,049 9% 81.6 4 16%
San Diego  City of 47,355,303,598 46,452,597,390 902,706,208 2% 82.0 4 16%
Mountain View  City of 2,967,854,797 2,531,213,885 436,640,912 15% 82.5 4 16%
Golden State Water Company Artesia 1,402,138,690 1,348,796,812 53,341,879 4% 83.4 4 16%
California Water Service Company Dominguez 8,444,765,582 8,077,205,172 367,560,410 4% 83.7 4 16%
Greenfield, City of 573,049,890 501,684,126 71,365,764 12% 83.8 4 16%
Long Beach  City of 14,658,100,592 13,842,168,619 815,931,973 6% 83.8 4 16%
Dublin San Ramon Services District 2,779,417,000 1,959,505,000 819,912,000 29% 84.7 4 16%
Golden State Water Company Culver City 1,415,824,450 1,344,756,254 71,068,196 5% 84.8 4 16%
Sunnyvale  City of 4,612,426,949 3,920,970,221 691,456,728 15% 85.2 4 16%
California Water Service Company Salinas District 4,612,101,098 4,065,974,106 546,126,992 12% 86.0 4 16%
Lynwood  City of 1,264,349,156 1,237,371,916 26,977,240 2% 86.3 4 16%
Santa Rosa  City of 5,454,466,874 4,447,473,373 1,006,993,501 18% 86.7 4 16%
Hawthorne  City of 1,070,747,789 1,135,592,223 ‐64,844,434 ‐6% 86.7 4 16%
California Water Service Company Mid Peninsula 3,986,792,209 3,551,780,554 435,011,655 11% 87.4 4 16%
San Gabriel Valley Water Company 9,747,519,587 9,124,165,807 623,353,780 6% 88.3 4 16%
Alameda County Water District 10,539,100,000 8,458,900,000 2,080,200,000 20% 88.3 4 16%
Santa Clara  City of 5,338,900,000 4,749,500,000 589,400,000 11% 88.3 4 16%
Menlo Park  City of 1,058,240,665 769,095,397 289,145,268 27% 88.6 4 16%
Millbrae  City of 668,885,610 603,267,242 65,618,369 10% 89.2 4 16%
Petaluma  City of 2,407,770,000 2,071,485,000 336,285,000 14% 89.6 4 16%

Page 2  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Hi‐Desert Water District 744,117,577 733,074,472 11,043,105 1% 90.2 4 16%
Burlingame  City of 1,288,363,748 1,075,113,151 213,250,598 17% 90.4 4 16%
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 139,452,680,105 130,343,503,463 9,109,176,642 7% 90.9 4 16%
Vallejo  City of 4,410,308,000 4,020,375,000 389,933,000 9% 91.3 4 16%
San Buenaventura  City of 4,446,346,994 3,813,888,925 632,458,069 14% 91.3 4 16%
Pico Rivera  City of 1,267,056,981 1,099,162,034 167,894,948 13% 91.6 4 16%
Scotts Valley Water District 311,979,632 253,857,835 58,121,797 19% 91.6 4 16%
Irvine Ranch Water District 15,406,744,246 15,015,266,341 391,477,904 3% 91.7 4 16%
Santa Maria  City of 3,370,607,161 3,257,210,864 113,396,297 3% 93.0 4 16%
Windsor, Town of 963,136,985 817,896,531 145,240,453 15% 93.0 4 16%
California Water Service Company Redwood Valley 108,182,674 82,440,411 25,742,263 24% 93.3 4 16%
American Canyon, City of 915,968,361 777,155,653 138,812,708 15% 93.5 4 16%
Golden State Water Company West Orange 4,000,477,969 3,830,090,258 170,387,711 4% 94.2 4 16%
East Bay Municipal Utilities District 52,390,500,000 46,127,500,000 6,263,000,000 12% 94.2 4 16%
Crescent City  City of 583,110,000 710,650,000 ‐127,540,000 ‐22% 94.5 4 16%
Martinez  City of 1,027,679,751 871,695,210 155,984,540 15% 95.5 5 20%
Pomona  City of 5,817,361,333 5,468,536,077 348,825,256 6% 95.9 5 20%
San Jose  City of 5,294,000,000 4,707,000,000 587,000,000 11% 96.0 5 20%
Bellflower‐Somerset Mutual Water Company 1,350,031,789 1,268,477,694 81,554,095 6% 96.2 5 20%
California Water Service Company Hermosa/Redondo 2,984,799,071 2,983,495,666 1,303,406 0% 96.4 5 20%
Azusa  City of 5,165,530,597 4,670,763,054 494,767,543 10% 97.3 5 20%
California Water Service Company Stockton 6,808,665,567 6,318,910,872 489,754,695 7% 97.6 5 20%
El Segundo  City of 1,692,179,532 1,788,496,457 ‐96,316,925 ‐6% 97.9 5 20%
Westminster  City of 3,064,371,990 2,956,971,359 107,400,630 4% 98.0 5 20%
Carpinteria Valley Water District 1,160,826,158 1,028,941,051 131,885,107 11% 98.2 5 20%
Lomita  City of 591,013,026 547,632,425 43,380,600 7% 98.2 5 20%
Norwalk City of 559,456,000 511,830,000 47,626,000 9% 98.6 5 20%
Mesa Water District 4,434,609,825 4,283,056,327 151,553,499 3% 99.0 5 20%
Moulton Niguel Water District 7,135,207,799 6,864,125,480 271,082,319 4% 99.2 5 20%
Santa Monica  City of 3,462,200,000 3,321,100,000 141,100,000 4% 99.2 5 20%
Rowland Water District 2,857,000,142 2,756,214,295 100,785,846 4% 99.2 5 20%
Livermore  City of Division of Water Resources 1,642,615,000 1,199,514,000 443,101,000 27% 100.1 5 20%
Fountain Valley  City of 2,438,968,604 2,305,516,153 133,452,452 5% 100.2 5 20%
Watsonville  City of 2,045,660,752 1,803,744,576 241,916,176 12% 100.3 5 20%
Lathrop, City of  1,149,290,000 990,960,000 158,330,000 14% 100.3 5 20%
Pittsburg  City of 2,481,549,000 2,226,323,000 255,226,000 10% 100.4 5 20%
El Monte  City of 328,279,000 312,936,000 15,343,000 5% 100.6 5 20%
Tahoe City Public Utilities District 372,523,331 326,265,848 46,257,483 12% 100.9 5 20%

Page 3  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Mid‐Peninsula Water District 823,925,361 712,822,442 111,102,919 13% 101.4 5 20%
Mammoth Community Water District 499,483,000 447,407,000 52,076,000 10% 102.9 5 20%
San Gabriel County Water District 1,612,133,643 1,485,957,453 126,176,190 8% 102.9 5 20%
Helix Water District 8,454,736,636 8,067,103,778 387,632,858 5% 103.6 5 20%
Whittier  City of 2,041,957,743 2,084,064,264 ‐42,106,521 ‐2% 104.2 5 20%
Great Oaks Water Company Incorporated 2,641,791,567 2,210,783,322 431,008,244 16% 104.2 5 20%
Hollister  City of 832,612,930 742,476,980 90,135,950 11% 104.4 5 20%
Calexico  City of 1,524,360,000 1,440,570,000 83,790,000 5% 104.6 5 20%
Lakewood  City of 2,086,631,973 1,856,580,866 230,051,107 11% 105.0 5 20%
Oceanside  City of 6,988,111,948 6,765,555,423 222,556,525 3% 105.1 5 20%
San Jose Water Company 36,046,000,000 31,608,300,000 4,437,700,000 12% 105.7 5 20%
Valley of the Moon Water District 800,300,880 646,691,259 153,609,621 19% 106.5 5 20%
Escondido  City of 4,625,134,351 4,059,907,513 565,226,838 12% 106.7 5 20%
Fairfield  City of 5,435,000,000 4,853,000,000 582,000,000 11% 106.7 5 20%
Downey  City of 4,090,256,554 3,834,059,128 256,197,426 6% 106.9 5 20%
Glendale  City of 6,839,188,070 6,346,086,881 493,101,189 7% 107.1 5 20%
Otay Water District 8,209,272,756 7,888,634,952 320,637,804 4% 107.1 5 20%
Marin Municipal Water District 7,006,662,670 5,966,662,221 1,040,000,448 15% 107.4 5 20%
Camarillo  City of 2,747,943,839 2,399,416,293 348,527,546 13% 107.5 5 20%
California‐American Water Company Sacramento District 8,801,191,649 7,285,565,423 1,515,626,225 17% 107.8 5 20%
Adelanto city of 1,091,834,544 993,603,394 98,231,150 9% 108.5 5 20%
Anaheim  City of 16,337,538,847 15,992,788,037 344,750,810 2% 108.6 5 20%
Ukiah  City of 678,601,000 551,722,000 126,879,000 19% 108.6 5 20%
Huntington Beach  City of 7,506,541,568 7,116,888,432 389,653,136 5% 109.0 5 20%
Napa  City of 3,605,871,891 3,247,435,321 358,436,570 10% 109.2 5 20%
Lakeside Water District 1,064,566,388 977,942,044 86,624,343 8% 109.3 5 20%
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 2,952,148,758 2,752,858,026 199,290,733 7% 109.4 5 20%
Crescenta Valley Water District 1,200,433,997 1,043,760,838 156,673,159 13% 109.4 5 20%
Torrance  City of 3,906,665,343 3,703,464,394 203,200,950 5% 111.0 6 24%
Big Bear City Community Services District 266,135,894 256,898,007 9,237,888 3% 111.0 6 24%
Vista Irrigation District 4,896,569,394 4,632,303,886 264,265,507 5% 111.1 6 24%
Perris, City of 437,809,090 430,597,020 7,212,070 2% 111.9 6 24%
Pismo Beach  City of 434,216,578 359,495,587 74,720,991 17% 113.1 6 24%
Vallecitos Water District 4,390,033,350 4,037,168,840 352,864,510 8% 116.1 6 24%
Soledad, City of 581,571,300 531,785,500 49,785,800 9% 116.7 6 24%
Manhattan Beach  City of 1,219,661,891 1,153,188,200 66,473,691 5% 116.7 6 24%
Palo Alto  City of 3,180,440,852 2,685,999,460 494,441,392 16% 116.8 6 24%
Gilroy  City of 2,328,666,000 1,995,678,000 332,988,000 14% 117.5 6 24%

Page 4  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Humboldt Community Service District 610,120,000 573,669,000 36,451,000 6% 117.9 6 24%
Alhambra  City of 2,575,148,433 2,329,573,763 245,574,669 10% 118.3 6 24%
Golden State Water Company S Arcadia 908,701,874 851,189,098 57,512,777 6% 118.5 6 24%
Orchard Dale Water District 589,289,272 550,757,340 38,531,931 7% 118.6 6 24%
Buena Park  City of 3,777,921,445 3,441,805,698 336,115,747 9% 118.9 6 24%
Golden State Water Company Placentia 1,868,334,327 1,778,757,770 89,576,557 5% 118.9 6 24%
Pico Water District 1,029,001,320 960,057,631 68,943,690 7% 119.1 6 24%
Delano  City of 2,386,120,000 2,229,650,000 156,470,000 7% 119.4 6 24%
El Centro  City of 1,978,323,000 1,910,544,000 67,779,000 3% 119.5 6 24%
Pleasanton  City of 4,439,552,000 3,099,891,000 1,339,661,000 30% 119.8 6 24%
Woodland  City of 2,938,159,020 2,454,292,204 483,866,816 16% 119.8 6 24%
El Toro Water District 2,331,141,109 2,239,576,858 91,564,251 4% 119.9 6 24%
San Fernando  City of 839,719,127 786,931,196 52,787,931 6% 120.3 6 24%
Suburban Water Systems San Jose Hills 7,160,122,399 6,833,016,444 327,105,955 5% 120.3 6 24%
Sunny Slope Water Company 1,052,785,122 950,022,234 102,762,888 10% 120.5 6 24%
California Water Service Company Livermore 2,781,467,781 1,909,163,511 872,304,270 31% 120.5 6 24%
Laguna Beach County Water District 872,082,691 867,064,579 5,018,112 1% 121.0 6 24%
Fortuna  City of 303,008,000 276,986,000 26,022,000 9% 121.2 6 24%
Amador Water Agency 899,761,000 773,623,400 126,137,600 14% 121.5 6 24%
South Coast Water District 1,639,847,306 1,549,814,557 90,032,749 5% 121.7 6 24%
Alco Water Service 1,156,954,000 1,028,617,000 128,337,000 11% 124.2 6 24%
Monte Vista Water District 2,603,464,922 2,359,464,115 244,000,807 9% 125.0 6 24%
Golden State Water Company Barstow 1,595,531,512 1,445,509,515 150,021,997 9% 125.4 6 24%
California Water Service Company Marysville 575,127,769 496,597,575 78,530,194 14% 125.5 6 24%
Coachella  City of 1,395,900,000 1,294,010,000 101,890,000 7% 125.5 6 24%
Brea  City of 2,826,761,129 2,727,376,444 99,384,685 4% 125.9 6 24%
Colton, City of 2,519,711,330 2,487,549,794 32,161,536 1% 126.3 6 24%
Chino  City of 3,332,449,959 3,123,999,542 208,450,416 6% 126.7 6 24%
Santa Margarita Water District 7,105,190,366 6,932,489,109 172,701,256 2% 126.8 6 24%
Reedley  City of 1,302,000,000 1,109,000,000 193,000,000 15% 126.9 6 24%
Ontario  City of 8,782,999,363 8,499,508,622 283,490,741 3% 126.9 6 24%
Valencia Water Company 7,817,224,611 6,780,899,767 1,036,324,844 13% 127.0 6 24%
Groveland Community Services District 127,297,632 96,625,396 30,672,236 24% 127.5 6 24%
Eureka  City of 860,874,000 799,778,000 61,096,000 7% 128.1 6 24%
North Marin Water District 2,457,000,000 1,986,810,000 470,190,000 19% 129.1 6 24%
City of Newman Water Department 559,946,000 448,854,000 111,092,000 20% 129.2 6 24%
Tuolumne Utilities District 1,441,240,862 992,152,425 449,088,437 31% 129.3 6 24%
Golden State Water Company Simi Valley 1,830,698,487 1,657,215,187 173,483,300 9% 129.9 6 24%

Page 5  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Twentynine Palms Water District 666,765,336 641,552,256 25,213,080 4% 130.5 7 28%
Eastern Municipal Water District 22,059,815,756 21,154,600,492 905,215,264 4% 130.7 7 28%
South Pasadena  City of 1,045,005,526 935,193,595 109,811,931 11% 131.0 7 28%
California Water Service Company Oroville 830,595,287 682,007,037 148,588,251 18% 131.6 7 28%
Healdsburg  City of 540,150,000 446,810,000 93,340,000 17% 131.9 7 28%
Burbank  City of 4,712,137,486 4,362,205,638 349,931,847 7% 132.2 7 28%
Arroyo Grande  City of 776,210,684 654,635,517 121,575,167 16% 132.4 7 28%
San Juan Capistrano  City of 2,040,416,466 1,962,283,810 78,132,655 4% 133.3 7 28%
Garden Grove  City of 6,584,316,860 6,185,605,054 398,711,806 6% 133.6 7 28%
Del Oro Water Company 369,631,917 306,051,990 63,579,927 17% 134.3 7 28%
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 146,056,000 148,820,000 ‐2,764,000 ‐2% 134.5 7 28%
Tracy  City of 4,529,625,694 3,497,663,768 1,031,961,925 23% 134.6 7 28%
Riverside  City of 17,427,511,870 15,956,944,380 1,470,567,490 8% 135.3 7 28%
West Kern Water District 4,045,106,581 3,679,048,346 366,058,235 9% 135.4 7 28%
Fullerton  City of 7,215,373,767 6,969,105,034 246,268,733 3% 136.8 7 28%
Lincoln Avenue Water Company 613,030,807 557,668,649 55,362,157 9% 137.2 7 28%
La Habra  City of Public Works 2,397,728,848 2,535,032,864 ‐137,304,016 ‐6% 137.5 7 28%
Newport Beach  City of 4,220,349,478 3,924,557,845 295,791,633 7% 137.8 7 28%
Carlsbad Municipal Water District 4,342,002,850 4,259,269,173 82,733,677 2% 138.6 7 28%
Pasadena  City of 8,349,297,631 7,614,975,148 734,322,483 9% 139.0 7 28%
Truckee‐Donner Public Utilities District 1,264,764,466 1,144,274,188 120,490,278 10% 139.4 7 28%
Contra Costa Water District 8,855,338,380 7,547,370,752 1,307,967,628 15% 139.9 7 28%
Shasta Lake  City of 309,004,338 258,461,000 50,543,338 16% 140.2 7 28%
Suburban Water Systems Whittier/La Mirada 5,584,910,982 5,234,793,399 350,117,583 6% 141.1 7 28%
Antioch  City of 4,642,068,000 4,042,923,000 599,145,000 13% 141.9 7 28%
South Tahoe Public Utilities District 1,641,227,000 1,550,474,000 90,753,000 6% 141.9 7 28%
Sonoma  City of 583,798,675 494,362,234 89,436,441 15% 142.7 7 28%
San Gabriel Valley Fontana Water Company 10,907,224,816 10,188,722,419 718,502,397 7% 142.9 7 28%
West Sacramento  City of 3,567,747,274 2,941,460,832 626,286,443 18% 143.0 7 28%
Tehachapi, City of 582,624,632 536,291,818 46,332,814 8% 143.7 7 28%
Davis  City of 3,023,400,000 2,527,400,000 496,000,000 16% 143.9 7 28%
Benicia  City of 1,543,102,018 1,217,315,761 325,786,257 21% 143.9 7 28%
California Water Service Company Dixon, City of 382,549,575 346,705,918 35,843,657 9% 144.3 7 28%
Sunnyslope County Water District 694,319,032 596,249,460 98,069,572 14% 144.6 7 28%
Roseville  City of 8,448,024,096 6,930,859,852 1,517,164,244 18% 145.1 7 28%
Elk Grove Water Service 1,982,552,982 1,615,618,816 366,934,166 19% 145.3 7 28%
Paso Robles  City of 1,705,474,000 1,511,094,000 194,380,000 11% 146.1 7 28%
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 6,567,437,756 6,285,445,931 281,991,825 4% 146.3 7 28%

Page 6  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Sacramento  City of 28,979,000,000 23,440,000,000 5,539,000,000 19% 146.4 7 28%
Walnut Valley Water District 5,119,451,770 4,877,344,159 242,107,610 5% 146.4 7 28%
Rialto  City of 2,544,482,555 2,596,683,954 ‐52,201,399 ‐2% 146.8 7 28%
Diablo Water District 1,487,225,000 1,338,770,000 148,455,000 10% 147.7 7 28%
Patterson  City of 1,040,156,104 948,595,320 91,560,784 9% 148.3 7 28%
San Dieguito Water District 1,583,703,106 1,621,176,020 ‐37,472,914 ‐2% 148.4 7 28%
Orange  City of 7,732,617,288 7,437,395,896 295,221,393 4% 148.7 7 28%
California Water Service Company Kern River Valley 222,882,376 201,376,182 21,506,194 10% 148.9 7 28%
San Bernardino  City of 11,535,034,614 10,722,937,586 812,097,028 7% 149.1 7 28%
Suisun‐Solano Water Authority 1,038,300,000 918,300,000 120,000,000 12% 150.0 7 28%
Cerritos  City of 2,219,233,953 1,991,297,621 227,936,332 10% 153.6 7 28%
Sanger  City of 1,552,776,000 1,422,246,000 130,530,000 8% 153.7 7 28%
Fresno  City of 36,603,191,424 30,513,707,650 6,089,483,774 17% 154.2 7 28%
Monrovia  City of 1,885,000,000 1,673,000,000 212,000,000 11% 154.6 7 28%
Covina  City of  1,500,350,310 1,393,914,200 106,436,110 7% 154.7 7 28%
Lake Hemet Municipal Water District 2,880,852,466 2,579,961,258 300,891,208 10% 154.9 7 28%
Stockton  City of 8,304,530,000 7,263,300,000 1,041,230,000 13% 155.0 7 28%
Jurupa Community Service District 6,546,170,411 6,107,698,865 438,471,545 7% 155.5 7 28%
Ventura County Waterworks District No. 8 5,424,122,854 4,896,895,245 527,227,609 10% 156.1 7 28%
Tustin  City of 2,984,049,613 2,895,189,929 88,859,684 3% 156.5 7 28%
California‐American Water Company Los Angeles District 5,579,752,754 5,179,473,602 400,279,151 7% 156.8 7 28%
San Clemente  City of 2,270,663,084 2,331,434,375 ‐60,771,291 ‐3% 157.7 7 28%
Chino Hills  City of 3,952,965,804 3,587,674,904 365,290,900 9% 157.8 7 28%
Rubidoux Community Service District 1,400,190,000 1,335,510,000 64,680,000 5% 157.9 7 28%
Arvin Community Services District 740,072,884 667,768,501 72,304,383 10% 157.9 7 28%
Rosamond Community Service District 719,200,000 712,000,000 7,200,000 1% 158.1 7 28%
Golden State Water Company San Dimas 3,063,589,946 2,950,649,842 112,940,105 4% 159.0 7 28%
Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company 4,101,713,205 3,942,264,436 159,448,769 4% 159.8 7 28%
Hanford  City of 3,229,776,700 2,793,029,816 436,746,884 14% 160.0 7 28%
Santa Paula  City of 1,218,270,506 1,081,725,724 136,544,782 11% 160.2 7 28%
Morgan Hill  City of 2,262,311,000 1,786,089,000 476,222,000 21% 161.3 7 28%
North Tahoe Public Utility District 350,120,000 332,141,000 17,979,000 5% 161.7 7 28%
Atascadero Mutual Water Company 1,291,000,000 1,056,900,000 234,100,000 18% 163.0 7 28%
Thousand Oaks  City of 3,106,634,920 2,792,709,655 313,925,265 10% 163.7 7 28%
Victorville Water District 4,985,852,685 4,486,322,447 499,530,238 10% 164.4 7 28%
Fillmore  City of 482,079,202 446,216,000 35,863,202 7% 165.6 7 28%
Nipomo Community Services District 665,258,273 527,032,098 138,226,175 21% 165.6 7 28%
Ramona Municipal Water District 1,087,105,531 1,049,746,665 37,358,866 3% 165.9 7 28%

Page 7  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Ceres  City of 1,985,969,000 1,848,968,000 137,001,000 7% 166.1 7 28%
El Dorado Irrigation District 10,044,044,386 7,600,810,386 2,443,234,000 24% 166.2 7 28%
Newhall County Water District 2,611,216,927 2,326,139,289 285,077,638 11% 166.5 7 28%
California Water Service Company Willows 364,301,895 318,682,696 45,619,200 13% 168.6 7 28%
East Valley Water District 5,405,695,956 4,782,879,831 622,816,125 12% 169.4 7 28%
Joshua Basin Water District 409,078,118 382,604,644 26,473,473 6% 169.5 7 28%
Imperial, City of 687,420,000 671,127,000 16,293,000 2% 171.6 8 32%
Manteca  City of 3,844,580,000 3,212,645,000 631,935,000 16% 172.0 8 32%
Ventura County Waterworks District No 1 2,688,665,294 2,241,890,403 446,774,892 17% 172.0 8 32%
Dinuba  City of 1,126,830,000 977,550,000 149,280,000 13% 172.3 8 32%
Madera  City of 2,268,235,000 2,115,715,000 152,520,000 7% 173.5 8 32%
California Water Service Company Los Altos/Suburban 3,714,706,268 3,136,645,836 578,060,431 16% 173.8 8 32%
Hesperia Water District City of 3,676,581,651 3,538,094,794 138,486,856 4% 174.6 8 32%
Castaic Lake Water Agency Santa Clarita Water Division 7,358,051,073 6,493,567,237 864,483,836 12% 174.8 8 32%
Brentwood  City of 3,038,220,000 2,663,210,000 375,010,000 12% 174.9 8 32%
San Jacinto  City of 756,372,530 651,046,816 105,325,714 14% 176.1 8 32%
La Verne  City of 2,094,159,141 1,955,656,970 138,502,171 7% 176.5 8 32%
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District 1,766,766,437 1,514,883,284 251,883,153 14% 179.2 8 32%
Mission Springs Water District 2,072,832,166 1,979,439,888 93,392,277 5% 179.4 8 32%
Banning  City of 2,219,758,574 2,058,002,667 161,755,907 7% 179.4 8 32%
Brawley  City of 1,842,390,000 1,088,690,000 753,700,000 41% 179.5 8 32%
Cucamonga Valley Water District 12,916,078,335 12,778,430,872 137,647,463 1% 180.0 8 32%
Calaveras County Water District 1,468,843,000 1,200,100,000 268,743,000 18% 180.1 8 32%
Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District 635,139,826 675,206,517 ‐40,066,691 ‐6% 181.6 8 32%
Porterville  City of 3,123,277,400 2,849,237,200 274,040,200 9% 182.0 8 32%
Sacramento County Water Agency 9,991,675,171 8,451,666,395 1,540,008,776 15% 184.3 8 32%
California‐American Water Ventura District 4,397,006,571 3,988,454,052 408,552,519 9% 184.6 8 32%
Blythe  City of 806,370,000 811,680,000 ‐5,310,000 ‐1% 186.1 8 32%
Yreka, City of 593,290,000 519,800,000 73,490,000 12% 186.4 8 32%
Palmdale Water District 5,291,175,472 5,010,063,446 281,112,026 5% 187.2 8 32%
Yuba City  City of 4,215,490,000 3,629,080,000 586,410,000 14% 188.2 8 32%
California Water Service Company Selma 1,492,399,536 1,239,212,977 253,186,559 17% 189.2 8 32%
Western Municipal Water District of Riverside 5,887,379,311 5,683,989,367 203,389,944 3% 189.2 8 32%
Riverbank  City of 860,786,846 737,503,990 123,282,856 14% 191.2 8 32%
California Water Service Company Visalia 8,033,215,230 7,144,292,537 888,922,693 11% 191.7 8 32%
Hemet  City of 1,116,063,947 1,045,970,047 70,093,900 6% 192.8 8 32%
Turlock  City of 5,571,505,100 4,909,059,441 662,445,659 12% 193.9 8 32%
Corona  City of 8,699,410,000 8,297,070,000 402,340,000 5% 194.3 8 32%

Page 8  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Trabuco Canyon Water District 764,121,596 767,705,962 ‐3,584,366 0% 194.9 8 32%
Triunfo Sanitation District / Oak Park Water Service 687,285,830 597,937,369 89,348,461 13% 195.6 8 32%
Lamont Public Utility District 993,121,000 914,688,000 78,433,000 8% 197.4 8 32%
California Water Service Company Bakersfield 18,863,864,960 16,841,305,153 2,022,559,807 11% 197.6 8 32%
Lemoore  City of 1,967,044,000 1,783,354,000 183,690,000 9% 198.9 8 32%
Golden State Water Company Orcutt 1,941,781,239 1,705,636,709 236,144,529 12% 199.8 8 32%
Vacaville  City of 4,536,829,418 3,868,833,993 667,995,425 15% 199.9 8 32%
Citrus Heights Water District 3,723,178,405 3,023,575,391 699,603,014 19% 201.4 8 32%
Poway  City of 2,984,245,124 2,893,299,991 90,945,133 3% 201.7 8 32%
Livingston  City of 1,870,481,000 1,810,513,000 59,968,000 3% 204.2 8 32%
Los Angeles County Public Works Waterworks District 40 12,870,711,018 11,980,791,220 889,919,798 7% 205.5 8 32%
Galt  City of 1,302,667,000 1,052,546,000 250,121,000 19% 207.1 8 32%
Placer County Water Agency 7,686,123,771 6,395,079,193 1,291,044,578 17% 207.2 8 32%
Lee Lake Water District 760,491,304 738,717,756 21,773,548 3% 208.1 8 32%
San Bernardino County Service Area 70 457,322,702 431,251,330 26,071,373 6% 209.6 8 32%
California Water Service Company Chico District 6,759,462,002 5,680,893,778 1,078,568,223 16% 210.4 8 32%
Linda County Water District 971,706,000 880,037,000 91,669,000 9% 211.0 8 32%
West Valley Water District 5,029,549,361 4,747,557,536 281,991,825 6% 212.3 8 32%
Golden State Water Company Claremont 2,873,781,490 2,604,204,605 269,576,886 9% 213.2 8 32%
Folsom  City of 5,476,678,514 4,592,545,306 884,133,208 16% 213.7 8 32%
Sierra Madre  City of 616,142,059 546,575,118 69,566,941 11% 214.5 8 32%
Tulare, City of 4,805,328,900 4,324,313,800 481,015,100 10% 214.8 8 32%
Indio  City of 5,340,000,000 5,006,100,000 333,900,000 6% 215.7 9 36%
Oakdale  City of 1,417,000,000 1,139,000,000 278,000,000 20% 215.9 9 36%
Fallbrook Public Utility District 3,340,661,415 3,012,268,347 328,393,068 10% 217.3 9 36%
Kerman, City of 880,465,000 769,624,000 110,841,000 13% 217.9 9 36%
Exeter  City of 600,332,681 535,287,408 65,045,273 11% 218.8 9 36%
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District 512,901,000 410,416,000 102,485,000 20% 219.7 9 36%
Yorba Linda Water District 5,380,523,933 5,128,021,662 252,502,271 5% 220.2 9 36%
Rubio Canyon Land and Water Association 561,116,157 508,002,375 53,113,783 9% 220.8 9 36%
Sacramento Suburban Water District 9,630,759,000 8,318,514,000 1,312,245,000 14% 222.5 9 36%
Corcoran City of 1,162,447,000 950,206,000 212,241,000 18% 223.7 9 36%
Norco  City of 2,009,949,357 1,856,691,656 153,257,702 8% 224.2 9 36%
Golden State Water Company Cordova 4,051,962,495 3,483,514,680 568,447,814 14% 224.5 9 36%
Monterey Park  City of 649,960,000 594,880,000 55,080,000 8% 224.9 9 36%
Winton Water & Sanitary District 432,243,000 400,904,000 31,339,000 7% 228.3 9 36%
Montecito Water District 1,577,349,003 836,688,709 740,660,294 47% 228.9 9 36%
Camrosa Water District 2,469,015,365 2,141,221,863 327,793,502 13% 229.3 9 36%

Page 9  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Wasco  City of 1,096,680,000 952,170,000 144,510,000 13% 231.1 9 36%
Olivenhain Municipal Water District 5,326,497,766 5,149,755,952 176,741,814 3% 232.4 9 36%
Upland  City of 5,523,683,657 5,024,215,355 499,468,301 9% 234.9 9 36%
Clovis  City of 6,737,008,000 6,080,852,000 656,156,000 10% 235.2 9 36%
Beverly Hills  City of 2,984,049,613 2,900,957,499 83,092,114 3% 235.9 9 36%
Lodi  City of Public Works Department 3,904,230,000 3,932,720,000 ‐28,490,000 ‐1% 235.9 9 36%
Los Angeles County Public Works Waterworks District 29 2,383,427,229 2,356,081,777 27,345,452 1% 236.0 9 36%
Loma Linda  City of * 1,379,990,569 1,323,839,525 56,151,044 4% 236.0 9 36%
Shafter  City of 1,350,000,000 1,154,000,000 196,000,000 15% 236.5 9 36%
Fruitridge Vista Water Company 1,000,084,300 823,053,400 177,030,900 18% 238.3 9 36%
Paradise Irrigation District 1,721,400,000 1,355,900,000 365,500,000 21% 240.8 9 36%
Glendora  City of 3,108,798,089 3,089,127,284 19,670,805 1% 242.0 9 36%
Carmichael Water District 2,598,570,000 2,107,250,000 491,320,000 19% 242.5 9 36%
Rainbow Municipal Water District 3,976,593,060 3,760,749,074 215,843,985 5% 243.0 9 36%
Modesto, City of 15,589,770,183 13,698,086,925 1,891,683,258 12% 245.9 9 36%
Pinedale County Water District 267,792,348 224,289,932 43,502,416 16% 247.1 9 36%
Lincoln  City of 2,592,190,000 2,158,050,000 434,140,000 17% 251.0 9 36%
California Water Service Company Bear Gulch 3,623,142,017 3,228,861,790 394,280,227 11% 252.5 9 36%
Los Banos, City of 2,053,870,000 1,905,101,000 148,769,000 7% 253.0 9 36%
Redding  City of 7,109,010,000 5,934,100,000 1,174,910,000 17% 253.8 9 36%
Riverside Highland Water Company 971,591,200 889,248,544 82,342,656 8% 253.8 9 36%
California Water Service Company Palos Verdes 5,184,622,055 4,979,661,507 204,960,548 4% 255.4 9 36%
Olivehurst Public Utility District 1,161,641,529 959,245,393 202,396,137 17% 256.0 9 36%
San Bernardino County Service Area 64 758,722,238 679,807,540 78,914,699 10% 257.8 9 36%
Anderson, City of 572,342,000 498,676,000 73,666,000 13% 260.0 9 36%
Rio Vista, city of 641,312,000 606,333,000 34,979,000 5% 260.9 9 36%
Golden State Water Company Ojai 564,830,864 487,636,661 77,194,203 14% 261.0 9 36%
Indian Wells Valley Water District 1,861,884,000 1,789,365,000 72,519,000 4% 263.5 9 36%
Yucaipa Valley Water District 2,981,840,000 2,837,629,000 144,211,000 5% 265.1 9 36%
Casitas Municipal Water District 777,155,653 678,096,820 99,058,834 13% 265.7 9 36%
Nevada Irrigation District 2,750,729,000 2,339,997,000 410,732,000 15% 267.8 9 36%
Beaumont‐Cherry Valley Water District 3,172,199,486 3,139,252,648 32,946,838 1% 269.7 9 36%
East Niles Community Service District 2,504,168,216 2,213,508,744 290,659,473 12% 271.8 9 36%
Fair Oaks Water District 3,068,959,978 2,450,034,519 618,925,459 20% 274.1 9 36%
Discovery Bay Community Services District 986,000,000 808,000,000 178,000,000 18% 276.3 9 36%
Rio Linda ‐ Elverta Community Water District 770,017,391 629,595,315 140,422,076 18% 278.1 9 36%
East Orange County Water District 247,060,552 225,554,358 21,506,194 9% 278.2 9 36%
Bakersfield  City of 11,705,594,680 10,744,390,565 961,204,114 8% 279.9 9 36%

Page 10  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



Urban Water Suppliers and Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013)

Jul‐Sep 2014 R‐
GPCD

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

Total Water Production

Valley Center Municipal Water District 6,829,813,325 6,798,466,417 31,346,907 0% 291.2 9 36%
Red Bluff  City of 904,393,249 764,891,212 139,502,037 15% 294.3 9 36%
California Water Service Company Antelope Valley 186,061,165 216,691,199 ‐30,630,034 ‐16% 296.7 9 36%
Merced  City of 6,872,130,000 6,271,910,000 600,220,000 9% 298.8 9 36%
Bakman Water Company 1,032,655,497 893,235,946 139,419,551 14% 302.2 9 36%
Las Virgenes Municipal Water District 5,714,163,209 5,470,784,778 243,378,431 4% 304.8 9 36%
Oildale Mutual Water Company 2,485,920,537 2,317,129,497 168,791,039 7% 306.4 9 36%
California City  City of 1,192,746,563 1,264,824,899 ‐72,078,336 ‐6% 307.0 9 36%
Atwater  City of 2,358,960,000 1,821,770,000 537,190,000 23% 308.1 9 36%
Redlands  City of 7,033,861,488 6,969,114,810 64,746,679 1% 313.2 9 36%
Ripon  City of 1,431,002,833 1,223,409,134 207,593,699 15% 316.1 9 36%
Arcadia  City of 4,352,404,027 4,033,916,843 318,487,185 7% 318.5 9 36%
Hillsborough  Town of 877,331,034 658,647,771 218,683,262 25% 324.5 9 36%
Quartz Hill Water District 1,430,054,382 1,276,190,597 153,863,785 11% 326.9 9 36%
Madera County 891,468,716 660,496,910 230,971,806 26% 328.1 9 36%
Orange Vale Water Company 1,274,470,101 1,008,190,832 266,279,269 21% 332.3 9 36%
Kingsburg, City of 1,009,319,000 825,793,000 183,526,000 18% 332.5 9 36%
California Water Service Company Westlake 2,085,449,133 1,928,388,745 157,060,388 8% 336.7 9 36%
Rancho California Water District 16,377,618,572 16,074,902,597 302,715,976 2% 349.1 9 36%
Susanville  City of 560,250,000 602,070,000 ‐41,820,000 ‐7% 382.7 9 36%
Bella Vista Water District 3,596,422,200 1,864,847,717 1,731,574,483 48% 386.3 9 36%
Valley Water Company 999,093,060 898,861,161 100,231,899 10% 401.2 9 36%
Golden State Water Company Cowan Heights 703,676,157 691,163,462 12,512,695 2% 401.6 9 36%
Desert Water Agency 8,823,730,792 8,310,188,943 513,541,849 6% 416.0 9 36%
South Feather Water and Power Agency 1,435,400,000 1,292,100,000 143,300,000 10% 466.1 9 36%
Coachella Valley Water District 28,323,853,249 27,188,261,025 1,135,592,223 4% 475.1 9 36%
San Juan Water District 3,594,268,324 2,773,624,539 820,643,785 23% 476.8 9 36%
Vaughn Water Company 3,206,837,858 2,989,389,519 217,448,339 7% 507.0 9 36%
Serrano Water District 829,682,903 749,230,186 80,452,717 10% 539.2 9 36%
Santa Fe Irrigation District 2,820,156,121 2,869,480,251 ‐49,324,131 ‐2% 604.7 9 36%
Myoma Dunes Mutual Water Company 757,700,108 707,153,944 50,546,164 7% 613.7 9 36%

Page 11  R‐GPCD data current as of 4/23/15, certain data may be under review.
Agenda Item K-2



 

 
1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 

Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 
www.todb.ca.gov 

940350-2 

 
  
 
 
May, 2015 
 
Dear Discovery Bay Business, 
 
Facing a fourth-consecutive dry year and severely reduced water supplies, Gov. Jerry Brown recently ordered a 25 percent 
statewide reduction in potable urban water use. The State Water Resources Control Board has responded by proposing 
emergency regulations implementing the Governor’s orders to become effective May 15, 2015.  This unprecedented action 
reflects the severity of the drought and what is needed from all Californians to ensure all of our water use needs can be met.  
Based upon past water consumption, the state has proposed an even higher conservation standard for Discovery Bay.  Failure to 
comply with the mandatory reductions could result in the Town of Discovery Bay (TODB) being fined by the state $10,000 for 
each day of non-compliance. 
 
To achieve the required conservation and avoid the steep penalties imposed by the state, the TODB will continue to enforce the 
Emergency Drought Regulations enacted by the TODB Board of Directors in September 2014.  Those regulations may be 
amended to include any new restrictions from the May 15, 2015 revised emergency regulations.   
 
The TODB’s water use prohibitions implement statewide mandates including the limitation of outdoor irrigation to no more than 
two days per week for residential properties and no more than twice weekly for each turf valve station for businesses and 
common landscape areas such as home owner association’s ornamental landscaped areas. 
 
As a Discovery Bay business, the Town wants to make you aware of all of the new emergency drought regulations that are 
presently in effect and will be strictly enforced. 
 
The following water use prohibitions are currently in effect.  
 

 Properties with Even numbered addresses may water outdoors on Tuesdays and Saturdays only.  

 Properties with Odd numbered addresses may water outdoors on Wednesdays and Sundays only.  

 Outdoor watering may occur before 1:00 pm and after 7:00 pm only. 

 All dwellings, establishments, businesses, associations, parks or open spaces that are connected to an outdoor 
irrigation system which provides outdoor irrigation to multiple addresses, units and/or areas with or without an 
address may use outdoor water not more than two days per week for each irrigation controller, or zone or area 
controlled by that irrigation system. 

 Hosing down sidewalks and driveways is prohibited. 

 Watering outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes excess runoff is prohibited. 

 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes within 48 hours of rainfall is prohibited.  

 Washing a motor vehicle (car/boat/trailer/RV) with a hose, unless the hose is fitted with a shut -off nozzle is 
prohibited. 

 Operating a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is part of a recirculating system is prohibited. We 
strongly encourage you to turn off all fountains. 

 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to customers upon request. 
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 

 

 

 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 

Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 
www.todb.ca.gov 

940350-2 

Discovery Bay Businesses 
May, 2015 
Page 2 
 
The following water use prohibitions will take effect on or before May 15, 2015: 
 

 Irrigation outside of newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip or micro spray systems is 
prohibited. 

 Irrigation of ornamental turf on public street medians is prohibited. 
 
All water users within the TODB must implement conservation measures intended to achieve a measurable reduction in water 
use.  
 
Businesses, public agencies, homeowner associations, and new home developers are NOT exempt from these regulations.  
Everybody must comply with all current and new regulations, including those regarding lawns and ornamental landscapes, until 
such time as the regulations are rescinded by both the state and the TODB.  There are no exceptions to these measures, and 
Town staff will monitor water usage compliance. 
 
Failure to comply with the regulations may result in fines of up to $500.  The Town may issue a Notice of Violation to any 
person, business, association, or other party who fails to comply with any condition of the regulations.  A Notice of Violation 
that is issued is punishable by a fine of $25 for a first violation, $50 for a second violation, $100 for a third violation, and 
$500 for a fourth and any subsequent violation.  Additionally, conservation based pricing for all commercial accounts and 
other conservation measures will be considered by the Board of Directors at a future meeting.   
 
The Town has been working diligently to notify every property owner of the importance of water conservation efforts and the 
need to reduce discretionary water use.  If you need help finding additional ways to save, we are here to help. Visit 
www.saveourwater.com or call us at 925-634-1131 or visit us on our website at www.todb.ca.gov and click on the Drought links. 
 
The Town is prepared to assist you with educational materials and other outreach methods should you deem those appropriate. 
 
I have attached a copy of Ordinance #25 that establishes the current emergency drought regulation in the Town of Discovery 
Bay.  The state’s proposed emergency regulations are also attached. 
 
You may reach me at 925-308-9042 to further discuss these important new water saving regulations. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Rick Howard, General Manager 
Town of Discovery Bay 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.saveourwater.com/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 

Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 
www.todb.ca.gov 

940350-2 

Water Use Prohibitions for ALL Discovery Bay Residents  

 Properties with Even numbered addresses may water outdoors on Tuesdays and Saturdays only. 

 Properties with Odd numbered addresses may water outdoors on Wednesdays and Sundays only. 

 Outdoor watering may occur before 1:00 pm and after 7:00 pm only. 

 Hosing down sidewalks and driveways is prohibited. 

 Watering outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes excess runoff  is prohibited. 

 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes within 48 hours of rainfall  is prohibited. 

 Washing a motor vehicle (car/boat/trailer/RV) with a hose, unless the hose is fitted with a shut -off nozzle is prohibited. 

 Operating a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is part of a recirculating system is prohibited. We strongly 

encourage you to turn off all fountains. 

 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to customers upon request. 

 Watering of landscape of newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip or micro-spray systems is 

prohibited. 

 Irrigation of ornamental turf on public street medians is prohibited. 

 All water users within the TODB must implement conservation measures intended to reductions in water use.  
 
Easy Do-It-Yourself Ways to Reduce Water Use 
 
Here are just a few tips to help you get started meeting the required reductions in water use. Discover more ideas and learn how you save 
even more at www.saveourwater.com. 
 
Lose your lawn, get a garden 
Replace your thirsty front yard lawn with drought tolerant plants. HINT - Reduce your automatic sprinkler schedule to one watering day and 
save up to 400 gallons per week. Check your sprinkler timer after every power outage. 
 
Water early or late 
Outdoor watering between 1:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. is prohibited.  HINT - Save up to 80 gallons per week by watering in the early morning 
or evening, when temperatures are cooler. Remember to water no more than two days per week. 
 
Limit Evaporation 
 
Use a pool and/or spa cover.  HINT – Check for leaks and make repairs immediately. 
 
Sweep, don’t spray 
Hosing down your driveway or patio is prohibited and you could save up to 10 gallons per minute by using a broom or electric leaf blower.   
 
Low-flow showerhead 
An efficient showerhead could save 8 gallons or more per day. HINT – take shorter showers and turn the water off when lathering up! 
 
Upgrade your toilet 
Replace that old toilet with a high-efficiency model and save about 15 gallons per day.  HINT – Place a brick in the toilet tank to save a quart of 
water with each flush! 
 
Read your meter  
If you have a meter, you can determine your daily use and check for leaks. A leaky toilet can lose up to 40 gallons per day. Shut off all water and 
check your meter reading.  Go back after 30 minutes and check it again.  If it moves, you probably have a leak.  If you don’t have a meter, check 
for leaks around the home and fix them immediately. 
 
Mulch around plants 
A layer of mulch around trees and other plants in your garden saves you up to 8 gallons per day.  
 
Launder full loads 
Modern clothes washers save an average of 10 gallons per load over standard models. Wash full loads only.  
 
Visit www.saveourwater.com for more tips and easy ways to conserve water. 
 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.saveourwater.com/
http://www.saveourwater.com/


 

1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 

Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 
www.todb.ca.gov 

940350-2 

 
  

 
   

May, 2015 
 
Dear Discovery Bay Home Owner, 
 
I am writing you to let you know that the Town of Discovery Bay is working with all residents to ensure compliance with emergency drought 
regulations enacted by the Town and the state of California. 
 
You are receiving this letter because the mailing address for your Discovery Bay property is not a local mailing address, and it is important that 
the Town reach out to you as a home owner and possibly weekend/vacation resident of Discovery Bay.  
 
As you are well aware, the state is facing a fourth-consecutive dry year with severely reduced water supplies.  Gov. Jerry Brown recently 
ordered a 25 percent statewide reduction in potable urban water use. The State Water Resources Control Board has responded by proposing 
emergency regulations implementing the Governor’s orders to become effective May 15, 2015.  This unprecedented action reflects the severity 
of the drought and what is needed from all Californians to ensure all of our water use needs can be met.  Based upon past water consumption, 
the state has proposed an even higher conservation standard for Discovery Bay.  Failure to comply with the mandatory reductions could result 
in the Town of Discovery Bay (TODB) being fined by the state $10,000 for each day of non-compliance. 
 
To achieve the required conservation, the TODB will continue to enforce the Emergency Drought Regulations enacted by the TODB Board of 
Directors in September 2014 and will amend those regulations shortly to include any new restrictions imposed by the state’s emergency 
regulations.  The TODB’s water use prohibitions implement statewide mandates including the limitation of outdoor irrigation to no more than 
twice weekly. It is essential that you adjust your outside water use to comply with the following authorized watering schedule: 

 

 Properties with Even numbered addresses may water outdoors on Tuesdays and Saturdays only.  

 Properties with Odd numbered addresses may water outdoors on Wednesdays and Sundays only.  

 Outdoor watering may occur before 1:00 pm and after 7:00 pm only.  
 
A complete list of do’s and don’ts is on the back side of this letter.   
 
Failure to comply with the regulations may result in fines of up to $500 for residents and businesses.  The Town may issue a Notice of 
Violation to any person, business, association, or other party who fails to comply with any condition of the regulations.  A Notice of 
Violation that is issued is punishable by a fine of $25 for a first violation, $50 for a second violation, $100 for a third violation, and $500 
for a fourth and any subsequent violation. 
 
You and your neighbors have been working diligently to reduce discretionary water use. Thanks to changes many of you have made in recent 
years, this reduction in water use is achievable and within reach. If you need help finding additional ways to save, we are here to help. I 
encourage you to do your part, and to use water wisely.  To show your commitment and to “Join the Effort”, stop on by the Community Center 
or Town office next time you’re in Discovery Bay and pick up your own BROWN IS THE NEW GREEN yard sign! Visit us at www.todb.ca.gov and 
click on the Drought links, visit www.saveourwater.com for water saving tips or call us at (925) 634-1131.  We’re here to help. 
 
This is a great community and with a little effort, we’ll get through this together. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Rick Howard, General Manager 
Town of Discovery Bay 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 

 

 

 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.saveourwater.com/


 

1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 

Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 
www.todb.ca.gov 

940350-2 

 

Water Use Prohibitions for ALL Discovery Bay Residents  
 Properties with Even numbered addresses may water outdoors on Tuesdays and Saturdays only. 

 Properties with Odd numbered addresses may water outdoors on Wednesdays and Sundays only. 

 Outdoor watering may occur before 1:00 pm and after 7:00 pm only. 

 Hosing down sidewalks and driveways is prohibited. 

 Watering outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes excess runoff is prohibited. 

 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes within 48 hours of rainfall  is prohibited. 

 Washing a motor vehicle (car/boat/trailer/RV) with a hose, unless the hose is fitted with a shut -off nozzle is prohibited. 

 Operating a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is part of a recirculating system is prohibited. We strongly 

encourage you to turn off all fountains. 

 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to customers upon request. 

 Watering of landscape of newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip or micro-spray systems is 

prohibited. 

 Irrigation of ornamental turf on public street medians is prohibited. 

 All water users within the TODB must implement conservation measures intended to reductions in water use.  
 

Easy Do-It-Yourself Ways to Reduce Water Use 

Here are just a few tips to help you get started meeting the required reductions in water use. Discover more ideas and learn how you save 
even more at www.saveourwater.com. 
 
Lose your lawn, get a garden 
Replace your thirsty front yard lawn with drought tolerant plants. HINT - Reduce your automatic sprinkler schedule to one watering day and 
save up to 400 gallons per week. Check your sprinkler timer after every power outage. 
 
Water early or late 
Outdoor watering between 1:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. is prohibited.  HINT – Aerate your lawn, that way you’ll get a deeper and more 
thorough watering.  Also, save up to 80 gallons per week by watering in the early morning or evening, when temperatures are cooler. 
Remember to water no more than two days per week.  Stop watering before run-off to adjacent properties, driveways and sidewalks. 
 
Limit Evaporation 
 
Use a pool and/or spa cover.  HINT – Check for leaks and make repairs immediately. 
 
Sweep, don’t spray 
Hosing down your driveway or patio is prohibited.  Hint - you could save up to 10 gallons per minute by using a broom or electric leaf blower.   
 
Low-flow showerhead 
An efficient showerhead could save 8 gallons or more per day. HINT – take shorter showers and turn the water off when lathering up! 
 
Upgrade your toilet 
Replace that old toilet with a high-efficiency model and save about 15 gallons per day.  HINT – Place a brick in the toilet tank to save a quart of 
water with each flush! 
 
Read your meter  
If you have a meter, you can determine your daily use and check for leaks. A leaky toilet can lose up to 40 gallons per day. Shut off all water and 
check your meter reading.  Go back after 30 minutes and check it again.  If it moves, you probably have a leak.  If you don’t have a meter, check 
for leaks around the home and fix them immediately.  Contact the Town office if you’re not sure! 
 
Mulch around plants 
A layer of mulch around trees and other plants in your garden saves you up to 8 gallons per day.  
 
Launder full loads 
Modern clothes washers save an average of 10 gallons per load over standard models. Wash full loads only.  
 
Visit www.saveourwater.com for more tips and easy ways to conserve water. 
 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.saveourwater.com/
http://www.saveourwater.com/


 

1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 
Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 

www.todb.ca.gov 
940350-2 

 
  

 
   

May, 2015 
 
Dear Discovery Bay Resident, 
 
Facing a fourth-consecutive dry year and severely reduced water supplies, Gov. Jerry Brown ordered a 25 percent statewide 
reduction in potable urban water use. The State Water Resources Control Board has responded by proposing emergency 
regulations implementing the Governor’s orders to become effective May 15, 2015.  This unprecedented action reflects the 
severity of the drought and what is needed from all Californians to ensure all of our water use needs can be met.  Based upon 
past water consumption, the state has proposed an even higher conservation standard for Discovery Bay.  Failure to comply with 
the mandatory reductions could result in the Town of Discovery Bay (TODB) being fined by the state $10,000 for each day of non-
compliance. 
 
To achieve the required conservation, the TODB will continue to enforce the Emergency Drought Regulations enacted by the 
TODB Board of Directors in September 2014 and will amend those regulations shortly to include any new limitations from the 
state’s emergency regulations.  The TODB’s water use prohibitions implement statewide mandates including the limitation of 
outdoor irrigation to no more than twice weekly.  
 
Many water use prohibition are currently in effect.  All residents are strongly encouraged to continue their current 
conservation efforts and to increase those efforts where possible as there will be no exceptions for non-compliance. Please 
refer to the complete list of do’s and don’ts on the back side of this letter, along with easy and helpful hints to reduce 
consumption. 
 
Failure to comply with the regulations may result in fines of up to $500 for residents and businesses.  The Town may issue a 
Notice of Violation to any person, business, association, or other party who fails to comply with any condition of the 
regulations.  A Notice of Violation that is issued is punishable by a fine of $25 for a first violation, $50 for a  second violation, 
$100 for a third violation, and $500 for a fourth and any subsequent violation.  
 
You and your neighbors have been working diligently to reduce discretionary water use. Thanks to changes many of you have 
made in recent years, this reduction in water use is achievable and within reach. If you need help finding additional ways to save, 
we are here to help. I encourage you to do your part, and to use water wisely.  To show your commitment and to “Join the 
Effort”, stop on by the Community Center or Town office and pick up your own BROWN IS THE NEW GREEN yard sign! Visit us at 
www.todb.ca.gov and click on the Drought links, visit www.saveourwater.com for water saving tips or call us at (925) 634-1131.  
We’re here to assist. 
 
This is a great community and with a little effort, we’ll get through this together. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Rick Howard, General Manager 
Town of Discovery Bay  

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 

 

 

 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.saveourwater.com/


 

1800 Willow Lake Road • Discovery Bay • CA • 94505-9376 
Telephone • 925.634.1131 • Fax • 925.513.2705 

www.todb.ca.gov 
940350-2 

 
Water Use Prohibitions for ALL Discovery Bay Residents  

 Properties with Even numbered addresses may water outdoors on Tuesdays and Saturdays only. 

 Properties with Odd numbered addresses may water outdoors on Wednesdays and Sundays only. 

 Outdoor watering may occur before 1:00 pm and after 7:00 pm only. 

 Hosing down sidewalks and driveways is prohibited. 

 Watering outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes excess runoff  is prohibited. 

 Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes within 48 hours of rainfall  is prohibited. 

 Washing a motor vehicle (car/boat/trailer/RV) with a hose, unless the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle is prohibited. 

 Operating a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the water is part of a recirculating system is prohibited. We strongly 

encourage you to turn off all fountains. 

 Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to customers upon request. 

 Watering of landscape of newly constructed homes and buildings that is not delivered by drip or micro-spray systems is 

prohibited. 

 Irrigation of ornamental turf on public street medians is prohibited. 

 All water users within the TODB must implement conservation measures intended to reductions in water use.  
 
Easy Do-It-Yourself Ways to Reduce Water Use 
 
Here are just a few tips to help you get started meeting the required reductions in water use. Discover more ideas and learn how you save 
even more at www.saveourwater.com. 
 
Lose your lawn, get a garden 
Replace your thirsty front yard lawn with drought tolerant plants. HINT - Reduce your automatic sprinkler schedule to one watering day and 
save up to 400 gallons per week. Check your sprinkler timer after every power outage. 
 
Water early or late 
Outdoor watering between 1:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. is prohibited.  HINT – Aerate your lawn, that way you’ll get a deeper and more 
thorough watering.  Also, Save up to 80 gallons per week by watering in the early morning or evening, when temperatures are cooler. 
Remember to water no more than two days per week. 
 
Limit Evaporation 
 
Use a pool and/or spa cover.  HINT – Check for leaks and make repairs immediately. 
 
Sweep, don’t spray 
Hosing down your driveway or patio is prohibited and you could save up to 10 gallons per minute by using a broom or electric leaf blower.   
 
Low-flow showerhead 
An efficient showerhead could save 8 gallons or more per day. HINT – take shorter showers and turn the water off when lathering up! 
 
Upgrade your toilet 
Replace that old toilet with a high-efficiency model and save about 15 gallons per day.  HINT – Place a brick in the toilet tank to save a quart of 
water with each flush! 
 
Read your meter  
If you have a meter, you can determine your daily use and check for leaks. A leaky toilet can lose up to 40 gallons per day. Shut off all water and 
check your meter reading.  Go back after 30 minutes and check it again.  If it moves, you probably have a leak.  If you don’t have a meter, check 
for leaks around the home and fix them immediately. 
 
Mulch around plants 
A layer of mulch around trees and other plants in your garden saves you up to 8 gallons per day.  
 
Launder full loads 
Modern clothes washers save an average of 10 gallons per load over standard models. Wash full loads only.  
 
Visit www.saveourwater.com for more tips and easy ways to conserve water. 

Agenda Item K-2

http://www.todb.ca.gov/
http://www.saveourwater.com/
http://www.saveourwater.com/


 

 
 

 
944961-1 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

May 6, 2015 

 
Prepared By: Rod Attebery, Legal Counsel 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager  
 
 
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion on Sub-Committee Status 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
As Necessary 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
At the April 14, 2015 Special Board meeting, Director Leete requested that the Board consider the use of the sub-
committee structure be reformatted into “Standing Committees” from the currently existing Staff Committees commonly 
referred to as “Board Sub-Committees”.  This subject matter is entirely at the discretion of the Board.  The Board has the 
ability to change policy and the manner in which current activities occur is entirely within their purview. 
 
History: 
 
The General Manager has created Committees with Board members who volunteer to sit on these Committees.  The 
committees are facilitated by staff and consultants and allow for the ability to meet with two members of the Board to 
discuss matters affecting the District. These subjects can cover any topic of interest.  Staff utilizes these meetings to 
discuss a variety of options, considerations, and strategies regarding projects, operational matters, and other items 
affecting the District.  Eventually, these topics make their way to the full Board in either an action to be taken or as 
informational items.  Meetings take place as needed, and are informal in nature. Many times, there is not an agenda that 
is prepared as the subject matter may be brief.  Only one committee meets regularly. The Water and Wastewater 
Committee generally meets the 4

th
 Wednesday of the month at 3:00 p.m.  The reason for the regular schedule is that 

many people require coordination including staff, project engineers, and Veolia staff. 
 
The Board Bylaws (most recently amended on February 4, 2015), Section 2, Terms and Responsibilities (of the Board) 
refer to these committees as Staff Sub Committees.  In reality, however, they are more advisory in nature.  
 
Financial Implications: 
 
Board members are eligible for a stipend in the amount of $115.00 for each Brown Act meeting that they are authorized 
to attend or “day of Service” as defined by the Brown Act. 
 
Staffing Impacts: 
 
The transition from informal staff committee meetings/advisory committees to standing committees will have a 
measurable impact on staff.  The additional time to draft agendas, reports, prepare minutes, attend and record meetings, 
will result in additional staff time and expense that has yet to be assessed. 
 
Staff is prepared to discuss this matter with the Board. 
 
The discussion below more specifically details the issues related to this matter. 
 

“Continued to the next page” 

Cinderella
Stamp



 

 
944961-1 

 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 

Amount Requested $ None at this time. 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
February 4, 2015 Amendment to Board Bylaws 
   
Attachments 
 
1) Current list of Sub-Committee assignments; 2) Board Bylaws; 3) Examples of other agencies committee 
structures 
 

 
  AGENDA ITEM: L-1 



 

 
944961-1 

Discussion: 
 
Town of Discovery Bay Policy on Committees  
  
The Board Policy of the Town of Discovery Bay allows the Board to have standing committees, and 
gives the Board the power to appoint ad hoc committees as the need arises. The Board Policy also 
states that the general manager or designee may serve as staff to support those committees. Town of 
Discovery Bay CSD Board Policy (Amended February 18, 2015). Currently, the Town has committees 
called “Board Subcommittees” that are comprised of two (2) board members and staff and are advisory 
in nature.  
 
Brown Act 
The Brown Act (Act) applies specifically to the “meetings” of “legislative bodies” of all local agencies in 
California (Gov. Code §§ 54951, 54952). The Act does not apply to individual decision makers who are 
not elected, or appointed members of legislative bodies such as agency department heads when they 
meet with advisors, staff, colleagues, or anyone else. Similarly the Act does not apply to multi-member 
bodies which are created by an individual decision maker. 75 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 263, 269 (1992); 56 
Cal.Ops.Atty.Gen. 14, 17 (1973).  
 
Government Code § 54952(b) defines a “legislative body” in regards to the Brown Act. The definition 
of legislative body includes:  
 
“A commission, committee, board, or other body of a local agency, whether permanent or temporary, decision 
making or advisory, created by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of a legislative body. However, 
advisory committees composed solely of members of the legislative body which are less than a quorum of the 
legislative body are not legislative bodies, except that standing committees of a legislative body, irrespective 
of their composition, which have continuing subject matter jurisdiction, or a meeting schedule fixed by 
charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of a legislative body are legislative bodies for the 
purposes of this chapter.” 
 
  “Meeting” is defined in Government Code § 54952.2 as follows:  
 
(a) A meeting means any congregation of a majority of the members of a legislative body at the same 
time and location, including teleconference location and permitted by Section 54953, to hear, discuss, 
deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  
 
(1) A majority of the members of a legislative body shall not, outside a meeting authorized by this chapter, use a 
series of communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on 
any item of business that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  
 
(2) Paragraph (1) shall not be construed as preventing an employee or official of a local agency, from engaging in 
separate conversations or communications outside of a meeting authorized by this chapter with members of the 
legislative body in order to answer questions or provide information regarding a matter that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the local agency, if that person does not communicate to members of the legislative body the 
comments or position of any other member or members of the legislative body.  
 
(b) Nothing in this section shall impose the requirements of this chapter upon any of the following: 
 
(1) Individual contacts or conversations between a member of the legislative body and any other person that 
do not violate subdivision (b).  
 
(2) The attendance of a majority of members of a legislative body at a conference or similar gathering open to the 
public that involves a discussion of issues of general interest to the public or public agencies of the type 
represented by the legislative body, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among themselves, 
other than as a part of the scheduled program, business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the local agency. Nothing in this paragraph is intended to allow members of the public free 
admission to a conference or similar gathering at which organizers have required other participants or registrants 
to pay fees or charges as a condition to attendance.  
 
 



 

 
944961-1 

 
(3) The attendance of a majority of the members of the legislative body at an open and publicized meeting 
organized to address a topic of local community concern by a person or organization other than the local agency, 
provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled 
program, business of a specific nature that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of the 
local agency.  
 
(4) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at an open and noticed meeting of a 
legislative body of another local agency, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among 
themselves, other than as part of the scheduled meeting, business of a specific nature that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of a local agency.  
 
(5) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at a purely social or ceremonial occasion, 
provided that a majority of the members do not discuss among themselves business of a specific nature that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body of the local agency.  
 
(6) The attendance of a majority of the members of a legislative body at an open and noticed meeting of a 
standing committee of that body, provided that the members of the standing committee attend only as 
observers.  
 
 
Committees as Legislative Bodies Subject to the Brown Act 
  
The California League of Cities Brown Act Guide titled Open and Public IV Ch. 2: Legislative Bodies explains 
which types of committees fall into the category of a “legislative body” subject to the Act.  
 
1. Standing committees of a legislative body, irrespective of their composition, have either: (1) a continuing 
subject matter jurisdiction, or (2) a meeting schedule fixed by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action of a 
legislative body. § 54925(b). Even if comprised of less than a quorum of the governing body, a standing 
committee is subject to the Brown Act. For example, if a governing body creates long-term committees on budget 
or finance or on public safety, those are standing committees subject to the Brown Act. Further, function over form 
controls. For example, a statement by the legislate body that the “advisory committee shall not exercise 
continuing subject matter jurisdiction” or the fact that the committee does not have a fixed meeting schedule is not 
determinative.  
 
2. Boards, committees, and commissions that are created by statute or ordinance are subject to the Act 
even if they are under the jurisdiction of an individual department head. Government Code § 54952(b).  
 
Committees that are not a Legislative Body  
 
1. A temporary advisory committee is a committee composed solely of less than a quorum of the 
legislative body that serves a limited or single purpose, that is not perpetual, and that will be dissolved once its 
specific task is completed. Open & Public IV, Chapter 2: Legislative Bodies. Such temporary advisory committees 
are not subject to Brown Act. Gov. Code § 54925(b), Freedom Newspapers, Inc. v. Orange County Employees 
Retirement System Board of Directors (1993) Cal.4

th
 821. Temporary committees are sometimes called “ad 

hoc committees” (however, the term “ad hoc” is not used in the Brown Act itself).  Examples of temporary 
committees include an advisory committee composed of less than a quorum created to review candidates for a 
vacant position or to meet with representatives of other entities to exchange information on a matter of concern to 
the agency. Open & Public IV, Chapter 2: Legislative Bodies.  
 
2. Groups that are advisory for one particular decision-maker or appointed by staff are not covered 
subject to the Brown Act. Id. The Brown Act applies only to committees created by formal action of the legislative 
body and not to committees created by others. For example, a committee advising a superintendent of schools 
would not be covered by the Brown Act, while the same committee, if created by formal action of the school 
board, would be covered. 56 Cal.Ops.Atty.Gen. 162 (1976). However, where a body directs or authorizes a single 
individual to appoint a body, it would likely be subject to the Act. Frazer v. Dixon Unified School District (1993) 18 
Cal.App.4

th
 781, 793; International Longshoremen’s & Warehousemen’s Union v. Los Angeles Expert Terminal, 

Inc. (1999) 69 Cal.App.4
th
 287, 297). 

 
 
  



 

 
944961-1 

 

Committee Type Attributes Subject to Brown Act? 

Standing Committee (1) Continuing subject 
matter jurisdiction, OR 
(2) A meeting schedule 
fixed by ordinance, resolution, 
or formal action of a legislative 
body 

Yes 

Committee created by statute 
or ordinance 

Committee was created by a 
statute or ordinance (even if 
under the jurisdiction of a 
single individual) 

Yes 

Committee 
Directed/Authorized by the 
Board 

Board authorized or directed 
an individual to create a 
body/committee  

Yes 

Temporary Advisory 
Committee (“Ad hoc”) 

Serves a limited or single 
purpose and dissolves after 
purpose is achieved 

No 

Advisory for an individual or 
appointed by staff 

Committee created by 
particular individual (not the 
board) for advising of that 
particular individual, or an 
advisory committee appointed 
by staff  

No 

 
 

 



Committee Name Location Day and Time Director Appointed Alternate
Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory 

Committee

550 Sally Ride Dr. Concord or 

500 Eagle Court, Byron

1st Thursday of the 

Month at 10:00 a.m.

Kevin Bill

Contra Costa County Code Enforcement 3361 Walnut Boulevard Suite 

140 Brentwood

4th or 5th Thursday of the 

Month at 1:30 p.m.

Bob Bill

Contra Costa Special Districts Association 5019 Imhoff Place, Martinez Quarterly Bill Mark

East Contra Costa County Fire Protection 

District Liaison

3231 Main Street, Oakley 1st Monday of the Month 

at 6:30 p.m.

Kevin Chris

East County Water Management Association President Vice-President

LAFCO Liaison 651 Pine 6th Floor, Martinez 2nd Wednesday of the 

Month 1:30 p.m.

Chris Bill

Police Service (P6 Committee) Community Center Quarterly - TBD Bob Mark

School  District Representative Liaison 14301 Byron Highway, Byron 3rd Thursday of the 

Month at 7:00 p.m.

Chris Bob

Regional Transportation Agencies As Necessary As Necessary Mark Kevin

Committee Name Director Appointed Director Appointed
]

Finance Committee (Budget Sub-Committee, 

Investment Oversight Sub-Committee, Public 

Financing Authority Sub-Committee

Bob Mark

Communications Sub-Committee Mark Kevin

Parks and Recreation Sub-Committee 

(Community Center Sub-Committee, Park and 

Recreation Sub-Committee, Landscape Sub-

Committee)

Chris Bill

Water and Wastewater Sub-Committee Bill Kevin

Waterways Sub- Committee Chris Bob

Town of Discovery Bay - District Representative Listing 2015-2016

Board Sub-Committee Appointments

* Adoption of this Listing constitutes approval of the Board for attendance at meetings and representation of the Town of Discovery Bay, by the designated 

representative (or in that representative's absence, the alternate) concerning the subject for which the appointment is made but does not address the issue of whether 

such attendance may be compensated or whether expenses may be paid for such attendance, as those issues are addressed by law and by separate policy of the 

Board. 

Regional Committee Appointments

Agenda Item L-1



Town of Discovery Bay - District Representative Listing 2015-2016

Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee:  This involves attending meetings of this committee to discuss airport operations and activities.

Contra Costa County Code Enforcement:  This involves meeting with public officials, public employees and comm unity groups covering issues of code 

enforcement in, or affecting, the Town. 

Regional Committee Descriptions

LAFCO Liaison:  This involves attending meetings of LAFCO when an issue affecting the Town is before LAFCO. 

Police Services (P6 Committee): This involves meeting with public officials, public employees and community groups covering issues of police services in, or 

affecting, the Town.  

School District Representative Liaison:  This involves attending meetings of the School Districts, and meeting with public officials, public employees or community 

groups concerning issues affecting the relationship between the Town and the Town's residents and School Districts whose area involves any portion of the Town.  

Regional Transportation Agencies:  This involves attending meetings with public officials, public employees, and community groups concerning transportation 

issues affecting the residents of the Town. 

Contra Costa Special Districts Association:  This involves attending meeting of the Contra Costa Special Districts Association.

East Contra Costa County Fire Protection: District Liaison:  This involves attending meetings of the East Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, and meeting 

with public officials, public employees and community groups concerning issues of fire protection in, or affecting, the Town.  

East County Water Management Agency: This involves attending meetings of this association, made up of representatives of local water and wastewater agencies to 

discuss, and exchange, information pertaining to water and wastewater operations.

Waterways Sub-Committee: The Waterways Sub Committee seeks to find solutions to invasive water weed species while working cooperatively with regional and 

state agencies, including the California Department of Boating and Waterways, and local, state and federal representatives.

Board Sub-Committee Descriptions

Finance Committee Includes: Budget Subcommittee works with staff in the development of the District’s annual Operating and Capital Improvement Program 

Budgets.  The subcommittee may also meet periodically through the year to review existing budgets or to meet with staff to address budgetary issues. Investment 

Oversight Subcommittee is responsible for working with staff and financial advisors (when applicable) on making recommendations regarding the District’s 

investment portfolio that are consistent with the District’s Investment Policy. Public Financing Authority Subcommittee meets with staff, consultants, legal counsel, 

and other necessary individuals regarding the issuance of municipal debt of the Public Financing Authority on an as necessary basis.

Communications Subcommittee:  The Communications Subcommittee is tasked with assisting in various methods of communication in which the Town of 

Discovery Bay communicates its activities, information, and mission to the public. 

Parks & Recreation Sub-Committee Includes: Community Center Subcommittee works on the planning and future development of the Community Center.  This 

may involve meetings with public officials, public employees, Town staff and developers concerning issues involving the Community Center project. Park and 

Recreation Subcommittee that meets with staff on park and recreation functions of the District.  Landscaping Subcommittee works with staff on making 

recommendations involving all landscape areas within the Town’s jurisdiction.     

Water and Wastewater Subcommittee:  The Water and Wastewater Subcommittee meets with staff, contractors, engineers, and other necessary individuals 

regarding matters pertaining to the Town’s Water and Wastewater operations.   

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

NAME 
 

This unit of local government shall be known as the Town of Discovery Bay, a Community Services 
District, with powers and territorial boundaries as prescribed in Resolution No. 97/295 of the Board 
of Supervisors of Contra Costa County, State of California, dated June 10, 1997, and as provided by 
law. 

 
 ARTICLE II 
 
 PURPOSE 
 
The purposes of the Town of Discovery Bay, as approved by the Local Agency Formation Commission 
and by law, are 
 
A. To Operate as a Community Services District and provide water distribution, wastewater 
connection and treatment; and parks, landscaping and recreation services to the residents of 
Discovery Bay. 

 
B. To provide for those exercise of those powers set forth in Government Code §61000 et seq. 
(Community Services District Law).   

 
C. To continue the advisory responsibilities of the Discovery Bay Municipal Advisory Council; 
 
D. To serve the residents of the Town of Discovery Bay, in the manner provided by law. 
 
 ARTICLE III 
 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Section 1.   Board of Directors 

 
The governing body of the District shall consist of five (5) elected Directors, each of whom shall 
serve for a term of four (4) year staggered terms.  During elections every two (2) years, either 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
 

  

Program Area: 
Board 

  
Date Established: 

March 25, 1998 
  

Policy Name: 
Bylaws 

  
  
Date Amended: 

February 4, 2015 
  

Policy Number: 
002 

  
Resolution: 

2015-02 
  

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

two (2) or three (3) Directors are elected to serve to the District for the next four (4) years. The 
initial Directors, their terms and term expirations, are: 

 
William Slifer 4 years Expires December 1, 2001 

 
Mike Dohren 4 years Expires December 1, 2001 

 
David Piepho 4 years Expires December 1, 2001 

 
Virgil Koehne 2 years Expires December 1, 1999 

 
Chet Loveland 2 years Expires December 1, 1999 

 
Section 2.  Compensation 

 
The Board may authorize each Director to receive compensation of One Hundred and Fifteen 
Dollars ($115.00) for each meeting of the Board attended, and One Hundred Fifteen Dollars 
($115.00) for each day’s service not to exceed Six Hundred Ninety Dollars ($690.00) per month 
as provided in Government Code §61047 and Chapter 2 commencing with Section 20200 of 
Division 10 of the Water Code.  Traveling and such other necessary expenses actually incurred 
in performing District Duties shall be reimbursed, and such reimbursement shall be in addition 
to the compensation specified herein consistent with the authorized Reimbursement and 
Travel Policy. 
 
Section 3.  Vacancies 

 
A. Vacancies on the Board shall be filled in accordance with Government Code § 1780. 

 
B. Vacancies shall be deemed to exist as provided in Government Code § 1770. 

 
Section 4.  Resignation 

 
A Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, to the President, or to 
the Secretary of the Board.  Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of 
such notice or at any later time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the 
acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

OFFICERS 
 

Section 1.  Elected Officers 
 

The elected officers shall be chosen by the Board from among the five (5) members of the 
Board and shall consist of a President (who may be called "Chair"), a Vice-President (who may 
be called "Vice-Chair"), and a President Pro-Tempore. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

Section 2.  Terms and Responsibilities of Elected Officers 
 

Elected Officers of the Board, as provided in Article IV, Sec. 1, shall be elected by the Board at 
the first meeting in January and shall serve for one (1) year, said term to commence upon 
election.  All elected officers shall be eligible to serve successive terms, except that the 
President shall be eligible to serve not more than two (2) full successive terms as President. 
 
Board members may serve on Regional Committees and in-house staff committees, referred to 
as Sub-Committees, as necessary.   
 
Regional Committees are to be assigned based upon the position held by the Board member 
and the seniority of each member of the Board.  Board members will have preference of 
committee selections in the following order: President, Vice-President, and President Pro-
Tempore, senior most Board member followed by the least senior Board member.  In the event 
seniority cannot be determined due to the date of assumption of office, the Board member 
with the highest vote count in their most recent election shall prevail as the senior member for 
purposes of this selection procedure.  This procedure shall be used to fill Primary and Alternate 
members to respective Regional Committees.  Board Members shall serve on the Regional 
Committee for a two-year term. 
 
Staff Sub-Committees are to be assigned based upon the position held by the Board member 
and the seniority of each member of the Board.  Board members will have preference of 
committee selections in the following order: President, Vice-President, and President Pro-
Tempore, senior most Board member followed by the least senior Board member.  In the event 
seniority cannot be determined due to the date of assumption of office, the Board member 
with the highest vote count in their most recent election shall prevail as the senior member for 
purposes of this selection procedure. This procedure shall be used to fill two Sub-Committee 
appointees to each sub-committee.  Board Members shall serve on the Sub-Committee for a 
two-year term. 
 
The Board may establish Committees that may become necessary from time to time to receive 
input from the public on a specific subject matter and limited in term, and formed by 
Resolution of the Board. 
 
 
A. General Responsibilities of the Board President 

 
1. Shall preside at all meetings of the board and such other meetings approved by the 

Board, and have authority to call for short recesses during meetings unless a 
majority of the Directors by vote oppose a recess. 

2. Cooperatively work with the General Manager/Board Secretary and Staff on the 
preparation of CSD Meeting Agendas and its contents. 

3. Shall serve as official spokesperson for the Board. 
 

4. Shall designate Directors or others to represent the Board at various meetings, 
hearings, and conferences, as confirmed by the Board. May co-sign all checks for 
warrants approved by the Board. 

5. Shall perform such other duties as necessary to carry out the work of the Board. 
6. Shall perform such duties as prescribed by law. 

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

 
B. General Responsibilities of the Vice-President 

 
1.     Shall serve in the absence of the President. 

 
C. General Responsibilities of the President Pro-Tempore 

 
1. Shall serve in the absence of the President and the Vice-President. 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
APPOINTED OFFICERS 

 
Section 1.  Appointed Officers 

 
A. The appointed officers of the District shall be General Manager, and a Secretary, who 

may be the same person, but neither of whom shall be a Director.  The duties of the 
appointed officers shall be as specified in law, and as directed by the Board.  

 
B.            Pursuant to Government Code §61050(b), the treasurer of the County of Contra Costa 

shall serve as the District Treasurer, and shall be the depositary and have the custody 
of all of the district's money except those accounts that are authorized under the 
Community Services District laws and/or in effect prior to January 1, 2006. 

 
 The Board may appoint such other officers as it deems necessary.  
 
 
Section 2.  General Responsibilities of the General Manager 
 
A. Appraise and evaluate the effects of the Board policies and the manner of their    

execution, and the efficiency of District personnel in terms of services rendered to the 
people of the District. 

 
B.  Provide leadership to staff in identifying District needs, establishing priorities and   

 determining the objectives, which will achieve the established goals of the District. 
 
C. Encourage and assist staff in the performance of their duties and encourage their 

professional growth. 
 
D.  Ensure evaluation of personnel under his/her direction. 
 
E.  Interpret and publicize the programs and services of the District for and to the public. 
 
F. Provide financial oversight of the District and Contra Costa County pursuant to funds 

on deposit at that agency. 
 
G. Lead the District management team in the preparation of the budget, control of 

expenditures, inventory control, program planning, changing priorities and public 
relations. 

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

 
H.  Perform the function of the District’s Public Information Officer. 
 
I.  Participate in community activities. 
 
J. Continue a program of professional development to assure and enhance staff’s 

professional growth. 
 
K.  Keep the Board informed of all communications affecting the District. 
 

Section 3. General Responsibilities of the Secretary of the Board 
 
A. Certify official documents and letters as required. 
 
B. Maintain the official files and records of the Board. 
 
C. Prepare the agenda for the Board meetings. 
 
D. Prepare and distribute minutes of the meeting of the Board. 
 
E. Maintain historical record and newspaper articles. 
 
F. Post agendas, minutes, public notices and proposed action documents as required by 

Board and government regulations. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

MEETINGS 
 

Section 1.  Regular and Special Meetings 
 

A.  The Board shall hold a regular meeting on the first (1st) and third (3rd) Wednesdays of 
each month, at the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, 
California 94505.  Such regular meetings shall be for considering reports of the affairs 
of the District and for transacting such other business as may be properly brought 
before the meeting.  Such meetings may be altered as to date, time and place, as 
provided for in a Resolution adopted by the Board. 

 
B. Special meetings may be called in accordance with the California Ralph M. Brown Act of 

1953, as amended (hereafter Brown Act). 
 

  All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act. 
 

Section 2.  Quorum 
 

The Board shall be empowered to conduct the business of the District whenever there is 
present at a properly called meeting, a quorum, as defined as comprising a majority of the 

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

existing Directors; normally three (3); except as otherwise provided by law.  Pursuant to 
Government Code §61045, the affirmative votes of three (3) members of the Board are 
required for action to be taken. 

 
Section 3.  Voting 

 
A. Voting shall only be conducted at proper noticed meeting where a quorum has been 

 established and members are physically present. 
 

B. Voting shall be by voice, show of hands, or roll call vote. 
 

C. Any vote that is other than unanimous shall be recorded by name of the voting 
member and whether the member voted “AYE”, “NO” or “ABSTAIN”. 

 
Section 4.  Notice of Regular and Special Meetings 

 
A. Notices of Regular Meetings shall be pursuant to the Brown Act. Such notices shall 

specify the place, the day, and the hour of the meeting and accompanying the notice 
shall be a copy of the agenda for that meeting. 

 
B. Notices of Special Meetings shall be pursuant to the Brown Act. In the case of special 

meetings, the notice, written or by telephone, shall specify the specific nature of the 
business to be transacted. 

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

PAYMENTS, CONTRACTS, AND REPORTS 
 

Section 1.  Payments 
 

All checks, warrants, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences 
of indebtedness issued in the name of, or payable to, the District, shall be signed or endorsed 
by both the President and Vice President, or by the President Pro-Tempore, and one other 
Director, or, in the absence of the elected officers, any two (2) Directors. 

 
Section 2.  Contracts 
 
The Board, except as in the Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or officers, 
agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of, and on 
behalf of, the District.  Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.  
Unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or 
authority to bind the District by any contract or engagement, to pledge its credit, or to render 
it liable for any purpose or to any amount.  

 
Section 3.  Reports 
 

Agenda Item L-1



  
661111-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Bylaws 
Amended February 4, 2015 

 

The Board shall prepare and cause to be sent an annual water quality report to the residents 
of the District. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

 
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

 
Rosenberg’s Rules of Order, current edition or such other authority as may be subsequently 
adopted by resolution of the Board is to apply to all questions of procedure and 
parliamentary law not specified in these Bylaws or otherwise by law. All motions made at 
Board meetings shall require a second to the motion prior to the Directors voting.  The 
President of the Board may unilaterally call for a recess at any time during a Regular or 
Special Meeting of the Board. The Board President may unilaterally adjourn the meeting 
unless a majority of the Board votes to continue the meeting. 

 
ARTICLE IX 

 
AMENDMENTS 

 
The Bylaws may be repealed or amended, or new Bylaws may be proposed, by resolution and 
the affirmative vote of at least three (3) members of the Board at any regular meeting of the 
Board, provided notice of such proposal shall be in compliance with the Brown Act, as 
amended. 

 

Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item M

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item N

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item O

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item P

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon


	05-06-15 Agenda Packet Cover Sheet.pdf
	05-06-15 Agenda.pdf
	C - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	D - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	E-1 - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	F-1 DRAFT Special Minutes 04-14-15.pdf
	F-2-1 Agenda Report Approve Register of District Invoices.pdf
	F-2-2 Copy of RFA Town Water Wastewater.pdf
	F-2-3 Copy of RFA LL #8.pdf
	F-2-4 Copy of RFA LL #9.pdf
	F-3-1 Agenda Report HERWIT Engineering prepare 15-16 Annual Assessment Report Ravenswood Imp. District Reso No. 2015-06.pdf
	F-3-2 Resolution No 2015-06 Ravenswood Annual Assessment Eng Report 2015-16.pdf
	G-1-1 Agenda Report Review of the FY 2013-14 DRAFT Audit.pdf
	G-2-1 Agenda Report Resolution Adopting Revised Facility Park fees (2).pdf
	G-2-2 DRAFT Facility Fee Schedule 04 23.15.pdf
	G-2-3 DRAFT Revised Park Fees 04.27.15.pdf
	G-2-4 DRAFT Picnic Area Rental Comparison Worksheet.pdf
	G-2-4 Resolution No. 2015-07 Adoption of Park Rules and Regulations.pdf
	G-3-1 Agenda Report Agency Comment Request – Variance Permit Application VP15-1014 – 4525 Discovery Point.pdf
	G-3-2 Agency Comment Request – Variance Permit Application VP15-1014 – 4525 Discovery Point.pdf
	H-1 DRAFT CCR.pdf
	I - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	J - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	K-1 - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	K-2-1 Drought - emergency_reg_fact_sheet_20150428.pdf
	K-2-2 Drought - draft25percent_conservation_regs20150428.pdf
	K-2-3 Drought - supplier_tiers_20150428.pdf
	K-2-4 Drought letter for DB Business May 2015 Final.pdf
	K-2-5 Drought letter Discovery Bay Home Owner with BITNG non local (KCK edits)RH May 2015 Final.pdf
	K-2-6 Drought letter Discovery Bay Resident with BITNG (KCK edits)RH May 2015 Final.pdf
	L-1-1 Agenda Report Discussion on Sub-Committee Status.pdf
	L-1-2 District Representative Listing - Revised 02-04-15.pdf
	L-1-3 Policy 002 - Bylaws.pdf
	L-1-5 Examples of other agencies committee structures.pdf
	M - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	N - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	O - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	P - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf

